
Tourist and Trading Société Anonyme
31 Viltanioti Str., Kifissia, Attica

ANNUAL 
REPORT

2024



2

ANNUAL REPORT2024



3

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



4

ANNUAL REPORT2024

Board of Directors.................................................................................................................................................... 6

1.	 Basic Financial Figures....................................................................................................................................... 8

2.	 Human Resources............................................................................................................................................ 13

3.	 Data of the company share.............................................................................................................................. 14

4.	 Annual Financial Report 2024.......................................................................................................................... 17 

	 A.	 STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS............................................................................................... 19

	 B. 	 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT........................................................................................................... 21

	 C. 	 ANNUAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT................................................................................................... 31

	 D. 	 LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT OF CERTIFIED AUDITOR ACCOUNTANT  

		  ON THE SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT...................................................................................................... 107

	 E. 	 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS........................................................................................................... 113

		  I.	 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION............................................................................................... 114

		  II.	 STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS....................................................................................................... 115

		  III.	 STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME........................................................................... 116

		  IV.	 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY................................................................................................ 117

		  V.	 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS............................................................................................................ 118

		  VI.	 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS........................................................................................... 119

		  1.	 Gerenal information.......................................................................................................................... 119

		  2.	 Summary of material accounting policies......................................................................................... 119

		  3.	 Critical estimates, judgements and errors......................................................................................... 135

		  4.	 Financial risk management............................................................................................................... 137

		  5.	 Fair value hierarchy........................................................................................................................... 143

		  6.	 Segmental analysis............................................................................................................................ 145

		  7.	 Property, plant and equipment......................................................................................................... 146

		  8.	 Right-of-use assets............................................................................................................................ 148

		  9.	 Investment property......................................................................................................................... 149

		  10.	 Intangible assets............................................................................................................................... 150

		  11.	 Goodwill............................................................................................................................................ 151

		  12.	 Investments in subsidiaries............................................................................................................... 152

		  13.	 Investments accounted for using the equity method....................................................................... 153

		  14.	 Deferred tax...................................................................................................................................... 155

		  15.	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income................................................ 157

		  16.	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss........................................................................... 158

Idex



5

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

		  17.	 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting................................................................... 158

		  18.	 Trade and other receivables.............................................................................................................. 160

		  19.	 Inventories........................................................................................................................................ 160

		  20.	 Cash and cash equivalents................................................................................................................ 161

		  21.	 Share capital and share premium...................................................................................................... 161

		  22.	 Other reserves.................................................................................................................................. 162

		  23.	 Non-controlling interests.................................................................................................................. 164

		  24.	 Borrowings........................................................................................................................................ 165

		  25.	 Lease liabilities.................................................................................................................................. 168

		  26.	 Securitisation.................................................................................................................................... 170

		  27.	 Post-employment benefits................................................................................................................ 171

		  28.	 Trade and other payables.................................................................................................................. 172

		  29.	 Provisions.......................................................................................................................................... 173

		  30.	 Revenue............................................................................................................................................ 173

		  31.	 Expenses........................................................................................................................................... 174

		  32.	 Employee benefit expenses.............................................................................................................. 174

		  33.	 Other income.................................................................................................................................... 175

		  34.	 Other gains/(losses) - net.................................................................................................................. 175

		  35.	 Finance income/(costs)..................................................................................................................... 176

		  36.	 Income tax expense.......................................................................................................................... 176

		  37.	 Investing activities............................................................................................................................. 177

		  38.	 Contingent assets and liabilities........................................................................................................ 178

		  39.	 Commitments................................................................................................................................... 179

		  40.	 Related party transactions................................................................................................................ 179

		  41.	 Earnings per share............................................................................................................................. 180

		  42.	 Audit fees.......................................................................................................................................... 181

		  43.	 Events after the reporting date......................................................................................................... 181

	 F.	 ANNEX - REPORT ON THE USE OF FUNDS................................................................................................ 182

5.	 Concise summary of the financial statements - 9  months 2024................................................................... 187

6. 	 Concise summary of the financial statements - 6 months  2024................................................................... 189 

7. 	 Concise summary of the financial statements - 3 months 2024.................................................................... 191 

	 G. 	 Information based on article 10 of L.3401/2005 published by the company during fiscal year 2024............. 194

HERTZ locations (May 2025)................................................................................................................................. 198



6

ANNUAL REPORT2024

Emmanouela Vassilakis, ................................................................................. Chairwoman, Executive Member

Marinos Yannopoulos, .................................................... Vice-Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Member

Eftichios Vassilakis, ..........................................................................Chief Executive Officer, Executive Member

George Vassilakis, ................................................................................................................ Executive Member

Konstantinos Deligiannis, ..................................................................................................... Executive Member

Garyfallia Pelekanou, ................................................................................................... Non-Executive Member

Konstantinos Sfakakis, .............................................................................Independent Non-Executive Member

Nikolaos Goulis, .......................................................................................Independent Non-Executive Member

Polyxeni Kazoli, ........................................................................................Independent Non-Executive Member

Philippe Marinos Costeletos, ....................................................................................... Non-Executive Member

Board of Directors



7

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



8

ANNUAL REPORT2024

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FIGURES - GROUP
Group

€'000 2024 2023 2022 2021
 

Revenue 985,688 1,002,674 765,560 641,646

EBITDA 278,407 272,055 226,365 178,876

Depreciation 154,854 132,281 106,337 94,111

Earnings Before Tax 105,392 106,141 104,025 64,585

Earnings After Tax 89,498 84,985 82,550 52,429

Attributable to:     

Owners of the parent 84,892 77,233 77,534 48,994

Non-controlling interests 4,607 7,752 5,016 3,436

Staff (peak) 2,023 1,918 1,744 1,357

Service centres 178 176 169 144

Fleet (peak) 61,900 58,955 53,700 47,100

CONDENSED FINANCIAL FIGURES - COMPANY
Company

€'000 2024 2023 2022 2021
 

Revenue 310,248 283,051 260,248 210,345

EBITDA 180,288 165,957 151,175 119,706

Depreciation 105,544 88,383 77,875 67,731

Earnings Before Tax 78,551 71,751 86,364 44,100

Earnings After Tax 69,283 61,368 72,580 37,116

Attributable to:     

Shareholders 69,283 61,368 72,580 37,116

Staff (peak) 605 570 492 454

Service centres 77 76 73 76

Fleet (peak) 42,800 40,500 38,400 36,300

1. Basic Financial Figures

1.1 Condensed Financial Figures
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CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET FIGURES - COMPANY
Group

€'000 2024 2023 2022 2021

Assets
Total Non Current Assets 1,227,279 1,119,773 932,070 719,833

Total Current Assets 378,879 296,461 267,551 244,028

Total Assets 1,606,158 1,416,235 1,199,621 963,861

    

Equity 489,888 455,888 344,959 321,310

Long term liabilities 771,166 600,169 558,411 289,479

Other short term liabilities 345,104 360,178 296,251 353,072

Total liabilities 1,116,270 960,347 854,662 642,551

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,606,158 1,416,235 1,199,621 963,861

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET FIGURES - COMPANY
Group

€'000 2024 2023 2022 2021

Assets
Total non-current assets 1,033,813 942,943 779,900 631,397

Total current assets 130,332 81,034 81,029 110,420

Total assets 1,164,145 1,023,977 860,929 741,818

     

Equity 350,916 334,710 244,530 232,447

Non-current liabilities 681,520 514,171 473,269 253,570

Current liabilities 131,708 175,096 143,131 255,801

Total liabilities 813,228 689,266 616,400 509,370

Total equity and liabilities 1,164,145 1,023,977 860,929 741,818

1.2 Condensed Consolidated Financial Figures
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Autohellas Group 
 

Autohellas Group has half a century of dynamic presence in the highly competitive and evolving 
automotive field. Today it is the largest Greek Group in services and car sales, based on the financial 
sizes and the fleet of vehicles it manages, and has a dynamic presence and activity in a total of 9 
countries. 
 
The Group maintains more than 170 branches that cover its activities. 
 

Brief History 
 

 

 
 

Operating Sectors 
 

Car Rentals in Greece and abroad 
 
Autohellas Group is one of the largest franchisees of Hertz International, with exclusive rights to use  
the Hertz brand in Greece, through the parent company Autohellas, and abroad through  
subsidiaries in Portugal, Bulgaria, Cyprus, Romania, Serbia, Montenegro, Croatia and Ukraine. 
 
Short-term rentals (Rent a Car) serve the needs of inbound tourism as well as individuals and 
companies requiring rentals of up to one year. 
 
Long-term rentals and fleet management (operating leasing) for individuals, companies, and public 
sector entities cover periods longer than one year. 
 
An additional activity includes the sale of used fleet vehicles. 
 
The Group maintains a network of more than 140 branches and service points covering the car rental 
business. 

  

1.3

1.4
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Comparison of the change in rentals Revenue and airport arrivals in Greece 
(Base 100) 

 

Source for Previous Years: Hellenic Statistical Authority 

 

Car and Spare Parts Import and Trade in Greece 
 
In addition to the activity in car rentals, the Autohellas Group is active in the import, distribution and 
trading of cars and spare parts, as well as in the provision of after-sales services. 
 
The Group holds a significant share in the import and marketing of new cars in Greece, maintaining 
the exclusive rights to import and distribute Hyundai, Kia, SEAT, and Cupra cars. 
 
In addition, in May 2023, Autohellas Group expanded its portfolio by jointly acquiring with Samelet 
Motors the company "FCA GREECE SA.A.". FCA Greece, which was later renamed "ITALIAN MOTION 
SINGLE MEMBER SOCIETE ANONYME", is the exclusive importer and general distributor of the Abarth, 
Alfa Romeo, Fiat, Fiat Professional and Jeep brands in the Greek market. 
 
Through the Velmar network the Group operates as an official distributor and authorized repairer of 
FORD, OPEL, VOLVO, HYUNDAI, KIA, SEAT, CUPRA, ALFA ROMEO, JEEP, FIAT, FIAT PROFESSIONAL, 
ABARTH, LANCIA, BMW, BMW MOTORRAD, MINI and SAAB. Autohellas also maintains a strong 
presence in the Greek used car retail market through the Velmar stock centers. 
 
Finally, through Eltrekka, the Group's activity extends to the import and distribution of aftermarket car 
parts in Greece, representing the largest manufacturers worldwide. 
 
The Group maintains a network of more than 30 branches and service points that cover the activity of 
importing and trading cars and spare parts. 
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The contribution of long-term rentals to the car rental revenue stream helps mitigate the impact of 
potential fluctuations in tourist traffic, with which short-term rentals are closely linked. As a result, it 
serves as a stabilizing factor, offering greater predictability (due to contracts with an average duration 
of four years) regarding the future course and progress of the Company’s revenue. 
 
 

Human Resources 
 
Human capital lies at the core of Autohellas Group’s operations. The Group systematically invests in 
creating and maintaining a safe, pleasant, and meritocratic working environment that promotes 
professional development, enhances skill-building, and encourages the attraction of new talent, with 
the aim of continuously strengthening its organizational effectiveness. 
 
At the same time, due to the strong seasonality that characterizes short-term rentals, the Company 
dynamically adjusts its staffing levels to ensure the necessary flexibility and maintain high productivity 
levels aligned with current operational needs. 
 
The following table presents the evolution of Autohellas Group’s personnel during the peak season 
(maximum number). 
 

Headcount Evolution (peak) 2024 2023 2022 2021 
Total Employees 2,023 1,918 1,744 1,357 
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Data on the company share 
 
Autohellas shares were listed on the Main Market of the Athens Stock Exchange in August 1999, with 
an initial listing price of €7.63 (18,000,000 shares). 
 
In October 2013, the Company increased the nominal value of each share from €0.32 to €0.96, while 
simultaneously reducing the total number of shares through a reverse split at a ratio of 1 new share for 
every 3 old shares. The new number of shares became 12,120,000. In November 2013, the Company 
reduced the nominal value of each share from €0.96 to €0.32 and returned capital to shareholders in 
the form of a cash payment of €0.64 per share. 
 
In March 2015, a number of 37,500 new ordinary registered shares with a nominal value of €0.32 each 
began trading on the Athens Stock Exchange. These shares resulted from a share capital increase due 
to the merger by absorption of the company “VAKAR S.A.”. In particular, the share capital was increased 
by €12,000 through the issuance of 37,500 new ordinary shares. 
 
In November 2015, the merger by absorption of the companies “VELMAR GREEK AUTOMOBILE AND 
REPRESENTATIONS TRADING AND INDUSTRIAL COMPANY S.A.” and “TECHNOCAR CRAFT & TRADING 
S.A.” was completed. As part of this merger, the Company’s share capital increased by €18,000 through 
the issuance of 56,250 new common registered shares with a nominal value of €0.32 each, allocated to 
the shareholders of the absorbed companies. The new total number of shares reached 12,213,750. 
 
In May 2019, following a resolution of the Company’s Annual General Meeting, the nominal value of 
each share was reduced from €0.32 to €0.08, with a simultaneous share split that increased the total 
number of shares from 12,213,750 to 48,855,000 common registered voting shares (split 1:4). 
 
The Company’s share capital remained unchanged at €3,908,400 and was divided into 48,855,000 
common registered voting shares with a nominal value of €0.08 each. 
 
It is noted that the Company previously held 230,236 shares with a nominal value of €0.08 each, 
acquired in 2012 and 2013, with a total value of €256,131.46, representing 0.4713% of the Company’s 
share capital. These shares were cancelled following a resolution of the Extraordinary General Meeting 
on 01.09.2021, in accordance with Article 49 of Law 4548/2018, resulting in a reduction of the share 
capital by €18,418.88 and a relevant amendment to Article 3 (Share Capital) of the Company’s Articles 
of Association. 
 
Following this reduction due to the cancellation of shares, the Company’s share capital now amounts 
to €3,889,981.12 (down from €3,908,400.00), divided into 48,624,764 common registered shares 
(down from 48,855,000 common registered shares before cancellation), each with a nominal value of 
€0.08. The new number of shares is 48,624,764. 
  

3.
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Autohellas S.A. 
Website:  https://www.autohellas.gr/en/investors/ordinary-share/ 
Bloomberg code: OTOEL:GA 
Reuters code: AUTr.AT 
ISIN code: GRS337503008 
High:   13.90 
Low:  10.02 
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B. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, GEMI: 001520401000, T: +30 210 6874400, www.pwc.gr 

Athens: 65 Kifissias Avenue, 15124 Maroussi | T:+30 210 6874400 
Thessaloniki: Agias Anastasias & Laertou, 55535 Pylaia | T: +30 2310 488880  
Ioannina: 2 Plateia Pargis, 1st floor, 45332 | T: +30 2651 313376 
Patra: 2A 28is Oktovriou & Othonos Amalias 11, 26223 | T: +30 2616 009208 

This audit report and the financial statements that are referred to herein have been translated 
for the original documents prepared in the Greek language. The audit report has been issued 
with respect to the Greek language financial statements and in the event that differences exist 
between the translated financial statements and audit report and the respective original Greek 
language documents, the Greek language documents will prevail.

Independent auditor’s report 

To the Shareholders of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME

Report on the audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements

Our opinion 

We have audited the separate and consolidated financial statements of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND 
TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME (Company or/and Group) which comprise the separate and 
consolidated statement of financial position (or separate and consolidated balance sheet) as at 
December 31, 2024, the separate and consolidated statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income (or profit or loss, comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flow 
statements for the year then ended, as well as notes to the separate and consolidated financial 
statements, comprising material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the separate and consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects the separate and consolidated financial position of the Company and the Group as at 
December 31, 2024, their separate and consolidated financial performance and their separate and 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, as adopted by the European Union and comply with the statutory requirements of Law 
4548/2018.

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as they have 
been transposed into Greek Law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements” 
section of our report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company and the Group in accordance with the International Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Boards of 
Accountants (IESBA Code) that has been transposed into Greek Law, and the ethical requirements of 
Law 4449/2017 and of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014, that are relevant to the audit of the separate and 

useful lives and calculating residual values of 
vehicles, it is considered a key audit matter.

For more information, refer to notes 2, 3 and 7 of 
the financial statements.

requirements of relevant accounting 
standards.

Revenue recognition 
The Company’s and the Group’s revenue streams 
include vehicle operating lease and finance lease 
income, vehicle sales and income from other 
additional vehicle related services, which is an 
important determinant of the Group’s profitability. 

Τhe Group focuses on revenue as a key 
performance measure which could create an 
incentive for revenue to be recognised before the 
risks and rewards have been transferred, resulting 
in a significant audit risk associated with revenue 
recognition.  Furthermore, there exists an inherent 
risk around the accuracy of revenue recorded 
given the impact of changing pricing models.

Based on these factors, there is a heightened risk 
that revenue is not completely or accurately 
recorded or that revenue is not recognised in the 
correct year. 

Due to the significant risk associated with revenue 
recognition and the increased work effort from the 
audit team, the recognition of revenue is 
considered a key audit matter.

For more information, refer to notes 2 and 30 of 
the financial statements.

Our audit procedures included obtaining an 
understanding of the various revenue streams, 
considering the appropriateness of the 
Group’s revenue recognition accounting 
policies and assessing compliance of these 
policies with relevant standards.

Our audit approach included understanding 
the systems and process that are relevant to 
revenue recognition, holding discussions with 
relevant Company and Group employees to 
validate processes and re-performing key 
process.

Furthermore, we performed relevant 
substantive audit procedures around the 
various revenue streams, which focused on 
the adequacy and consistency of the 
accounting policies applied, by conducting 
audit procedures over the point of transfer of 
risk and rewards.  Our audit procedures 
included:

• Analytical review procedures on the
different revenue streams.

• Sample testing of transactions during the
year of all material revenue streams.

• Revenue cut-off procedures.
• Testing of sales returns and credit notes

issued after year end.
• Sample third party confirmation of annual

revenue and trade receivables at year
end.

Our procedures concluded that revenue 
recognition for the Group’s revenue streams is 
consistent with the Company’s and the 
Group’s accounting policies and relevant 
standards.  Based on our work, we noted no 
significant issues regarding the accuracy of 
revenue reported for the year under audit.

The disclosures in the financial statements are 
adequate and consistent with the 
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consolidated financial statements in Greece. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the requirements of the IESBA Code, the Law 4449/2017 and the Regulation (EU) No 
537/2014.

We declare that the non-audit services that we have provided to the Company and its subsidiaries are 
in accordance with the aforementioned provisions of the applicable law and that we have not provided 
non-audit services that are prohibited under Article 5 par. (1) of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014.

The non-audit services that we have provided to the Company and its subsidiaries, during the year 
ended as at December 31, 2024, are disclosed in the note 42 of the separate and consolidated 
financial statements. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements of the year under audit. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Estimation of the useful lives and residual 
values of vehicles 
Property, plant and equipment includes vehicles 
amounting EUR 570 million for the Company and 
EUR 727 million for the Group as at 31 December 
2024, that are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment. The book values of 
vehicles are significant and form the basis of the 
Company’s and the Group’s rental and leasing 
operations.   

The estimation of the useful lives of vehicles, in 
accordance with IAS 16 "Property, Plant and 
Equipment", is based on historic performance as 
well as expectations about future use and 
therefore requires a degree of judgement to be 
applied by management. Residual values are 
determined taking into account generally accepted 
market forecasts adjusted where necessary to 
take into account factors specific to the vehicles. 

Management is required to assess the useful life 
and residual value of an asset periodically and 
changes should either be accounted for as an 
impairment charge or as a change in accounting 
estimate through prospective depreciation. 

Due to its significance as well as the degree of 
complexity and judgement required in estimating 

Our audit approach included obtaining an 
understanding of the vehicles management 
process as designed and implemented at the 
Company and the Group.

We evaluated and reviewed management’s 
process relating to useful lives and residual 
values assessment for vehicles and examined 
the criteria used to identify impairment 
indicators, with a focus on the timely detection 
of impairments. 

We tested the appropriateness of the 
approach used and the reasonableness of key 
assumptions applied by management. 
Furthermore, we also reviewed historical 
disposals of vehicles and the profit or loss 
derived from these disposals to assess if the 
followed approach reflects past performance. 

We determined that the approach for 
determining useful lives and residual values of 
vehicles forms a reasonable basis for 
management’s assessment and that the 
available evidence supported the key 
assumptions used. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are 
adequate and consistent with the 
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useful lives and calculating residual values of 
vehicles, it is considered a key audit matter.

For more information, refer to notes 2, 3 and 7 of 
the financial statements.

requirements of relevant accounting 
standards.

Revenue recognition 
The Company’s and the Group’s revenue streams 
include vehicle operating lease and finance lease 
income, vehicle sales and income from other 
additional vehicle related services, which is an 
important determinant of the Group’s profitability. 

Τhe Group focuses on revenue as a key 
performance measure which could create an 
incentive for revenue to be recognised before the 
risks and rewards have been transferred, resulting 
in a significant audit risk associated with revenue 
recognition.  Furthermore, there exists an inherent 
risk around the accuracy of revenue recorded 
given the impact of changing pricing models.

Based on these factors, there is a heightened risk 
that revenue is not completely or accurately 
recorded or that revenue is not recognised in the 
correct year. 

Due to the significant risk associated with revenue 
recognition and the increased work effort from the 
audit team, the recognition of revenue is 
considered a key audit matter.

For more information, refer to notes 2 and 30 of 
the financial statements.

Our audit procedures included obtaining an 
understanding of the various revenue streams, 
considering the appropriateness of the 
Group’s revenue recognition accounting 
policies and assessing compliance of these 
policies with relevant standards.

Our audit approach included understanding 
the systems and process that are relevant to 
revenue recognition, holding discussions with 
relevant Company and Group employees to 
validate processes and re-performing key 
process.

Furthermore, we performed relevant 
substantive audit procedures around the 
various revenue streams, which focused on 
the adequacy and consistency of the 
accounting policies applied, by conducting 
audit procedures over the point of transfer of 
risk and rewards.  Our audit procedures 
included:

• Analytical review procedures on the
different revenue streams.

• Sample testing of transactions during the
year of all material revenue streams.

• Revenue cut-off procedures.
• Testing of sales returns and credit notes

issued after year end.
• Sample third party confirmation of annual

revenue and trade receivables at year
end.

Our procedures concluded that revenue 
recognition for the Group’s revenue streams is 
consistent with the Company’s and the 
Group’s accounting policies and relevant 
standards.  Based on our work, we noted no 
significant issues regarding the accuracy of 
revenue reported for the year under audit.

The disclosures in the financial statements are 
adequate and consistent with the 
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requirements of relevant accounting 
standards.

Other Information 

The members of the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information, which is included in the Annual Report, in accordance with Law 3556/2007, is the 
Statements of Board of Directors members and the Board of Directors’ Report (but does not include 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the separate and consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information including the Management Report of the Board of Directors.

In connection with our audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the separate and consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We considered whether the Board of Directors’ Report includes the disclosures required by Law 
4548/2018 and the Corporate Governance Statement required by article 152 of Law 4548/2018 has 
been prepared and provides the information referred to in items (a), (b), (e) and (f) of paragraph 1 of 
article 152 of Law 4548/2018. 

Based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion: 

● The information given in the Board of Directors’ Report for the year ended at December 31, 2024
is consistent with the separate and consolidated financial statements,

● The Board of Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the applicable legal
requirements of articles 150, and 153 of Law 4548/2018, excluding the sustainability reporting
requirements for which a relevant limited assurance report dated 11 March 2024 was issued in
accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”,

● The Corporate Governance Statement provides the information referred to items (c) and (d) of
paragraph 1 of article 152 of Law 4548/2018.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and Group and their 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material 
misstatements in the Board of Directors’ Report and other information that we obtained prior to the 
date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Responsibilities of Board of Directors and those charged with governance for the separate and 
consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate and 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as 
adopted by the European Union and comply with the requirements of Law 4548/2018, and for such 
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
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separate and consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the separate and consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible 
for assessing the Company’s and Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company and Group or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Audit Committee (article 44 of Law 4449/2017) of the Company is responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the Company and the Group.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate and consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs, that have been 
transposed into Greek Law, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
separate and consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs that have been transposed into Greek Law, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate and consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, by designing and performing audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and Group’s internal control.

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies and methods used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

● Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s and Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the separate and
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate and consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the separate and consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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● Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements of the 
year under audit and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. Additional Report to the Audit Committee

Our opinion on the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements is consistent with 
our, as per article 11 of Regulation (EU) 537/2014 required, Additional Report to the Audit Committee 
of the Company.

2. Appointment

We were first appointed as auditors of the Company by the decision of the annual general meeting of 
shareholders on 25 April 2018. Our appointment has been continuously renewed by the decision of 
the annual general meeting of shareholders for a total uninterrupted period of appointment of 7 years.

3. Operating Regulation

"The Company has an Operating Regulation in accordance with the content provided by the provisions 
of article 14 of Law 4706/2020". 

4. Assurance Report on the European Single Electronic Format

Subject Matter

We undertook the reasonable assurance engagement to examine the digital files of the Company of
AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Company and / or Group”), which were compiled in accordance with the European Single Electronic 
Format (ESEF), and which include the Company and the Group’s separate and consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, in XHTML “213800DNMN314TEZPP87-2024-12-
31-en” format, as well as the intended XBRL “213800DNMN314TEZPP87-2024-12-31-en” file with the
appropriate markup, on the aforementioned consolidated financial statements , including other
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explanatory information (Notes to the financial statements), (hereinafter referred to as the “Subject 
Matter”), in order to determine that it was prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in the 
Applicable Criteria section.

Applicable Criteria 

The Applicable criteria for the European Single Electronic Format (ESEF) are defined by the European 
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815, as amended by Regulation (EU) 2020/1989 
(hereinafter “ESEF Regulation”) and the 2020 / C 379/01 Interpretative Communication of the 
European Commission of 10 November 2020, as provided by Law 3556/2007 and the relevant 
announcements of the Hellenic Capital Market Commission and the Athens Stock Exchange.

In summary, these criteria provide, inter alia, that: 

• All annual financial reports should be prepared in XHTML format.

• For consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, the financial information stated in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows, as well as the financial information included in the other explanatory information, should be
marked-up with XBRL 'tags' and ‘block tag’, according to the ESEF Taxonomy, as in force. The
technical specifications for ESEF, including the relevant classification, are set out in the ESEF
Regulatory Technical Standards.

Responsibilities of the management and those charged with governance 

The management is responsible for the preparation and submission of the separate and consolidated 
financial statements of the Company and the Group, for the year ended December 31, 2024, in 
accordance with the requirements set by the ESEF Regulatory Framework, as well as for those 
internal controls that management determines as necessary, to enable the compilation of digital files 
free of material error due to either fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our responsibility is to issue this Report regarding the evaluation of the Subject Matter, based on our 
work performed, which is described below in the “Scope of Work Performed” section. 

Our work was carried out in accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” 
(hereinafter “ISAE 3000). 

ISAE 3000 requires that we plan and perform our work to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
evaluation of the Subject Matter in accordance with the Applicable Criteria. In the context of the 
procedures performed, we assess the risk of material misstatement of the information related to the 
Subject Matter.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate and supports the 
conclusion expressed in this assurance report. 

Code of Conduct and quality management

We are independent of the Company and the Group, throughout the duration of this engagement and 
have complied with the requirements of the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
issued by the International Ethics Standards Boards of Accountants (IESBA Code) that has been 
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transposed into Greek Law, and the ethical requirements of Law 4449/2017 and of Regulation (EU) 
537/2014.

Our audit firm applies International Standard on Quality Management (ISQM) 1 “Quality Management 
for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements or Other Assurance or Relates 
Services Engagements” and consequently maintains a comprehensive quality management system 
that includes documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, 
professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Scope of work performed 

The assurance work we performed covers the subjects included in the No. 214/4/11-02-2022 Decision 
of the Hellenic Accounting and Auditing Standards Oversight Board (HAASOB) and in the “Guidelines 
in relation to the work and assurance report of Certified Public Accountants on the European Single 
Electronic Format (ESEF) of issuers with securities listed on a regulated market in Greece”, as issued 
by the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Greece on 14/02/2022, so as to obtain reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the Company prepared by the management comply, in all 
material respects, with the Applicable Criteria.

Inherent limitations

Our work covered the items listed in the “Scope of Work performed” section to obtain reasonable 
assurance based on the procedures described. In this context, the work we performed could not 
absolutely ensure that all matters that could be considered material weaknesses would be revealed.

Conclusion 

Based on the procedures performed and the evidence obtained, we conclude that the separate and 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended December 31, 
2024, in XHTML file format “213800DNMN314TEZPP87-2024-12-31-en”, as well as the provided 
XBRL file “213800DNMN314TEZPP87-2024-12-31-en” with the appropriate marking up, on the 
aforementioned consolidated financial statements, including the other explanatory information, have 
been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of the Applicable Criteria.

Athens, 12 March 2025

The Certified Auditor Accountant
Andreas Riris
SOEL Reg. No 65601

PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A.
Certified Auditors – Accountants
65 Kifissias Avenue
151 24 Marousi
SOEL Reg. 113
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C. ANNUAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT
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“Autohellas Tourist and Trading Société Anonyme” (hereinafter referred to as“ Company”), on 

▪ on the evolution of the Company’s activities, its financial position and financial performance, the overall course of the 

▪ on any important event that took place during the period and on any impact that those events have on the company’s interim 

▪ 
▪ 
▪ 
▪ “Sustainability Statements”
▪ 

titled “PARTICIPATIONS – CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES”

or’s

Tourist and Trading Société Anonyme, with the distinctive title “Autohellas”, was incorporated in Greece in 1962 and 
its shares are traded in the “Travel & Tourism” sector of the Athens Stock Exchange.  The Company’s registered office is at V

Kifissia, Attica, Greece. The Company’s website address is www.autohellas.gr

The Company’s main activities are –

that there is a safe margin of the right’s duration before the Company starts negotiati
This extraordinary, in duration, agreement has been granted to the Company as a result of HERTZ’ successful representation in
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▪ “AUTOTECHNICA HELLAS S.A.” 
▪ 

▪ 

Samelet Motors Ltd under the name "ORNOS SOCIÉTÉ ANONYME", which owns 100% of the share capital of the company under 
the name "ITALIAN MOTION SINGLE MEMBER SOCIÉTÉ ANONYME " and which is responsible for the import and distribution of a 

Δ% Δ%

Group’s revenue 

Δ%

Company’s revenue 

Δ%
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The above ratios present the final net profit before and after tax as a percentage of the company’s turnover

The above ratio shows the group’s and Company’s net income as a percentage of shareholder’s equity

 

loans as a percentage of total shareholders’ equity

 

This ratio reflects the Company’s financial sufficiency
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This ratio shows what percentage of the Company’s own capital has been converted into assets

ratio reflects the Company’s liquidity

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE RATIOS (“APR”

The Group uses Alternative Performance Ratios “APR” for decision making, strategic planning and performance evaluation 
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–

 

ALUGUER DE AUTOMÓVEIS S.A.
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First integration on 31.03.2015, due to increase in Company’s 

First integration on 08.07.2022, due to increase in Company’s 

First integration on 04.08.2022 due to increase in Company’s 

The Company participates in the company “SPORTSLAND SPORT FACILITIES TOURISM AND HOTELS S.A.”, with a 

amounts to €

holds an investment in the company “CRETE GOLF S.A.” with a percentage of 45.033%
to € 

“
”. to € 

Since 2022 the Company participates by 51% in the company “ORNOS S ” which is a joint venture of the Autohellas and Samelet 

to €

in the share capital of “INSTACAR S.A.” which is active in vehicle rentals through online subscriptions.
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“ ”

“ ”

market and price pressures, the Group’s commercial activity managed to maintain profitability at a satisfactory level.

€200 million Bond to the retail market and proceeded with the repayment of floating rate loans. At the same time, the Compa



39

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Car rentals experienced growth in 2024 in the markets of the Balkans and Cyprus, where the Company’s subsidiaries operate. Th

• nominal value of € 0.08 each have been acquired, with 
a total value of € 1,576,999, corresponding to 0.8104% of the Company's shares.

• Within the fiscal year 2021, a total of 95,936 treasury shares with a nominal value of € 0.08 each have been acquired, with a
total value of € 715,443, corresponding to 0.1973% of the Company's shares. 

• Within the fiscal year 2022, a total of 37,993 treasury shares have been acquired with a nominal value of €0.08 each, with a 
total purchase value of €367,256, corresponding to 0.0781% of the Company's shares.
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a nominal value of €0.08 each, amounting to a total value of €2,558,952, which represents 1.0447% of its share capital.

During the year, a total of 84,810 treasury shares with a nominal value of €0.08 each were acquired, with a total purchase va
of €975
shares were distributed free of charge, with a total value of €217,360.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company held a total of 573,810 treasury shares with a nominal value of €0.08 each, amounting to
a total value of €3,426,552, which represents 1.

in Greece, totaling €200 million, divided into up to 200 €1,000 

with a nominal value of €1,000 each were allocated raising €200 million

The total valid demand expressed by investors who participated in the Public Offering amounted to €453.46 million. The broad 

€1,000 per bond. The final yield on the bonds was set at 4.25% and 

mentioned bond loan of €200 million was completed. The 
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• An amount of €100
• An amount of €56

• An amount of €39.4 million was allocated to cover the Group's fixed needs, including expenses related to the periodic 

• Additionally, an amount of €4.6 million was allocated for the payment of expenses related to the issuance costs of the 

g Series A bonds amounting to €180 million were repaid and at the same time new Series A bonds amounting to €220 

 

expressed in different currencies than the Euro, which is the reporting currency of the Group. More specifically, the Group’s

 

 

in cash. Wholesales take place only after a thorough check on the customer’s financial reliability 
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used car price reduction risk. The Group’s ability to sell its used car 

As of 31.12.2023, the result from the valuation of properties was a profit of €
for investment properties and €350,218 for owner
€1,071,268 for investment properties and a loss of €7,013 for owner

 
–

–
–
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the Company’s Charter, in the General Assembly the shareholders, other persons entitled by the law to participate or some

apply to persons who attend the Shareholders’ General Meeting after the permission of the Chairman, in accordance with a
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Company’s
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▪ 
▪ 

▪ 
▪ 
▪ 
▪ 

The Suitability Policy is uploaded on the Company’s website (
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• Defines the items on the agenda of the meetings of the Board of Directors, ensures the proper organization of the work of t

• Presides over the Board of Directors, ensures the organization of its work and the effective conduct of meetings. 
• Represents the Company before any authority. 
• Facilitates the effective participation of the non

• Ensures the timely and correct information of the members of the Board of Directors, as well as its effective communication

• 

• Ensures and controls the implementation of strategic decisions as defined by the Board of Directors and the management of t
Company’s affairs. 
• Draws up the guidelines in the Company’s Directorates and oversees and ensures its smooth, orderly and efficient operation,

• Is responsible for the effective communication of the Board of Directors with the shareholders. 
• Provides sufficient information to the Board of Directors regarding events and developments concerning the Company. 
• Coordinates and supervises the individual Directorates of the Company. 
• Proposes the future strategy of the Company and evaluates the business opportunities presented. 
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The CVs of the Members of the Board of Directors of the Company have been posted on the Company’s website at 

the work of the Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

TRADE ESTATES ΑΕΕΑΠ

GRΟUΝD DΥΝΑΜΙC HOLDING S.A.

ENDEAVOR Greece ΑΜΚΕ
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of specific responsibilities / projects, the time devoted, the behavior and the use of the member’s knowledge and 

be submitted according to article 112 of Law 4548/2018 as well as the Company’s Remuneration Policy of the Board of 

 

 

The Audit Committee operates in the aim of supporting the Company’s Board of Directors in the effective fulfillment of its ta
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The operating principles and tasks of the Committee are described in detail in its Charter which is available on the Company’

“

refers to the work of the Audit Committee (hereinafter referred to as the “ ”) for the period 1.1

mentioned in the Report of the independent certified auditor and informed the Company’s Board of Directors about the 
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view to the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management procedures

, underlining the organization’s sincere 

- 
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- 

- 

- 

- 

”
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“Dear Shareholders,
purpose of this report is to describe the actions of the Company’s Nominations and Remuneration Committee (the 

“ ”). 

evaluation of the Company’s Board of Directors, upon completion of which it 

MARINOS YANNOPOULOS»

Information about the number of Company’s shares held by the BOD members as well as the upper Management

The CVs of the Company’s executives can be found in the company’s site address
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- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

subject to audit by the Company’s Internal Audit Unit
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• 
• 
• 
• 

▪ 
 

 
 
 
 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 
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• Identifying, evaluating and reporting the most important risks, as well as finding appropriate methods to minimize them. 
• The preparation and renewal of the risk and safety register. 
• Makes recommendations about the risk profile and risk appetite of the Company. 
• Makes recommendations about risk management policies and procedures. 
• Makes recommendations about the overall risk management strategy. 
• Assesses capital requirements on existing and future risks. 
• Submits risk assessment reports and other reports

• Establishes appropriate and up

• Monitors and controls on a continuous basis the Company’s compliance with regulatory and legislative requirements. 
• Supervises legislative and regulatory risk support procedures. 
• Advises on regulatory issue
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 Company’s share capital structure

registered shares with a nominal value of €0.08 each.

• Right to dividend from the Company's annual profits or liquidation proceedings. After the withholding of (a) a statutory re

• Right to take over the contribution at the time of liquidation or, respectively, the capital depreciation which corresponds

• Right of pre
• Right to obtain a copy of the financial statements and reports of the auditors certified accountants and the Company’s BoD;
• Right to participate in the General Meeting, which is specialized in the following individual rights: legalization, presenc

• The General Meeting of the Company’s Shareholders reserves all its rights during liquidation;

 Restrictions on corporate shares’ transfer
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section “INFORMATION 
REFERRING TO THE ACQUISITION OF OWN SHARES”

 



60

ANNUAL REPORT2024

 

 

 

price of €1.50 
and a total value of €4,519,830.

 

The sustainability statement of Autohellas Group presents the Group’s environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance
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based on the guidance in “the ESG Reporting Guide of the Athens Stock Exchange 
(AthEx)”. This guide includes a series of key indicators which calculate the company’s performance and align its activities b

the parent company Autohellas Tourist and Trading Société Anonyme 
(hereinafter “the Company”) and subsidiaries controlled by the Company (together, “the Group)

material based on the Group’s double materiality assessment (DMA). 
Group’s previous sustainability reports but have been deemed below the current double materiality assessment thresholds, have

—
—
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, who review Autohellas Group’s 

 

The Board of Directors comprises members with diverse expertise in key sectors relevant to the company’s business, including 
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commitments are upheld across the company’s operations and value chain.

company’s sustainability policy. The committee ensures that Autohellas' sustainability disclosures are transparent, reliable,
ly compliant with Greek law and EU regulations and directives. This involves reviewing the company’s environmental, social, 

is comprehensive, accurate, and truly reflects the company’s 

The Candidacy and Remuneration Committee at Autohellas plays a key role in aligning the company’s leadership with its 
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Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the undertaking’s 

Disclosure requirements in ESRS covered by the undertaking’s sustainability 
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Processes for engaging with own workforce and workers’ representatives about 

Characteristics of the undertaking’s 
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countries. At the heart of the Group’s operations is its human capital, which now exceeds 
geographical breakdown of the Group’s human capital is presented in the chapter “Own Workforce” of this Sustainability 

cles, reflecting the Group’s commitment to sustainable mobility solutions.

• 
• 
• 
• 

support Autohellas Group’s mission to offer flexible, cost

The Group’s total revenue from its business activities is broken down into three operating segments and reported in Note 6 of

 

   
    

Processes for engaging with own workforce and workers’ representatives about 

Characteristics of the undertaking’s 
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• 
The Group’s vehicle fleet is the core asset enabling its rental, leasing, and sales operations. Sourced from car 

• 

• 

resources support the company’s leasing programs, sustainability initiatives, and long

• 

the Group’s growth and innovation strategies.

• 
— —

quality mobility solutions. The company’s rental, leasing, fleet management, and 

• 

• 
Autohellas Group’s financial stability, revenue diversification, and long
and shareholders. The company’s focus on sustainable fleet investments, expansion into new markets, and digital 

• 
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h these interactions are considered in the Group’s broader risk assessment framework, influencing both mitigation 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• Notification via the Group’s website
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
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• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

related risks and opportunities are considered within the Group’s broader 
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ulatory impacts of climate change on the Group’s 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

into the company’s 
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impacts, risks, and opportunities influence the Group’s fleet transition strategies, capital investments, and allocation of r
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The Group’s due diligence framework ensures that both potential and actual impacts on people, the environment, and business 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 



73

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

 

and local communities. Each stakeholder group contributes to sustainability dependencies that influence the Group’s exposure 

• 

• 

• 



74

ANNUAL REPORT2024

 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

i  

term growth planning are aligned with the Group’s climate
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Sustainability risk assessments are embedded into Autohellas’ overall risk management processes, ensuring alignment with 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• –
• –
• 
• 
• 
• 

 

t the company’s financial position and performance).

The table below presents the results of Autohellas Group’s double materiality assessment, outlining the identified impacts, r
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↑↔↓

↑↔↓

↔

↔

↔

CO₂/km) ↔

↔

↔
↔
↔
↔
↔
↔
↓
↓
↓

↑↔↓
↑↔↓

• Column “Type”: “I” indicates Impact, “R” indicates Risk, “O” i
• Column “Actual/Potential”: “ ” “ ”
• Column “ ”: “x” indicates 
• Column “Time Horizon”: “+++” indicates Long term, “++” indicates term, “+” indicates Short

• Column “Value Chain” “↑” indicates Upstream “↔” indicates Own Operations, “↓” indicates 
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• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

emitting less than 50g CO₂/km and is taking the necessary steps to ensure its investments and fleet modernization initiatives
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Human Rights & Workers’ Rights

employees and business partners are required to adhere to the Group’s Anti
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Their preparation requires estimations during the application of the Group’s accounting principles. Double counting has been 

assessment process ensures accurate data allocation, aligning with the EU Taxonomy’s reporting principles to maintain 

the total CapEx and OpEx of the Group’s economic activities that correspond to activities determined to be non

6/EU and 2022/1214/EU. The Group’s economic activities were reviewed and ultimately included/excluded both in 

nsideration the above, the calculation of the KPIs was based on the following elements of the Group’s financial 
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–

Financial year 2024 Year Substantial contribution criteria DNSH criteria (“Does Not Significantly Harm”)         

Economic Activities 
(1) Code (2) Turnover (3) 

Proportion 
of Turnover 

2024 (4) 

Climate 
Change 

Mitigation 
(5) 

Clim
ate 

Chan
ge 

Adap
tatio
n (6) 

Wate
r (7) 

Pollu
tion 
(8) 

Circu
lar 

Econ
omy 
(9) 

Biodi
versit
y (10) 

C
li
m
a
t
e 
C
h
a
n
g
e 
M
it
i
g
a
ti
o
n 
(
1
1
) 

Clima
te 

Chan
ge 

Adap
tation 
(12) 

Wa
ter 
(13
) 

Poll
utio

n 
(14) 

Circ
ular 

Econ
omy 
(15) 

Biodiv
ersity 
(16) 

Minim
um 
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A. TAXONOMY-
ELIGIBLE 
ACTIVITIES 

  

                                    
A.1. Environmentally sustainable 
activities (Taxonomy-aligned)                                     
Turnover of environmentally sustainable 
activities (Taxonomy-aligned) (A.1) 0,00 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -       

Of which enabling 0,00 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -   E   
Of which transitional 0,00 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -     T 
A.2. Taxonomy-eligible but not 
environmentally sustainable activities (not 
Taxonomy-aligned activities) 
    

  
                                

        EL; N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL                     

Transport by 
motorbikes, 
passenger cars and 
light commercial 
vehicles 

CCM/CCA 6.5 912.380.527,00 93% EL EL N/EL N/EL N/EL N/EL               93%     

Turnover of Taxonomy-eligible but not 
environmentally sustainable activities (not 
Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2) 

912.380.527,00 93% 93% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%               93%   

A. Turnover of Taxonomy-eligible 
activities (A.1+A.2) 912.380.527,00 93% 93% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%               93%   

B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE 
ACTIVITIES                                     

Turnover of Taxonomy-non-eligible 
activities 73.307.077,00 7%                                

TOTAL 985.687.604,00 100%                                

–
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A.1. Environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned)                                     
CapEx of environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-
aligned) (A.1) 
Of which enabling 
Of which transitional 

0 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -       
0 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -   E   
0 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -     T 

A.2. Taxonomy-eligible but not environmentally 
sustainable activities (not Taxonomy-aligned activities)                                       

        EL; 
N/EL 

EL; 
N/EL 

EL; 
N/E

L 
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N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
                    

Transport by motorbikes, passenger cars and light 
commercial vehicles 

CCM
/CCA 
6.5 

327.2
82.31

7 
95% EL EL N/E

L N/EL N/EL N/EL               93%     

CapEx of Taxonomy-eligible but not environmentally sustainable 
activities (not Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2) 

327.2
82.31

7 
95% 95% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%               93%   

A. CapEx of Taxonomy-eligible activities (A.1+A.2) 
327.2
82.31

7 
95% 95% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%               93%   

B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES                                       

CapEx of Taxonomy-non-eligible activities 17.76
4.895 5%                                

TOTAL   
345.0
47.21

2 
100%                                
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Financial year 2024 Year Substantial contribution criteria DNSH criteria (“Does Not Significantly Harm”)         
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A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES                                       
A.1. Environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned)                                     
OpEx of environmentally sustainable activities (Taxonomy-aligned) 
(A.1) 0 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -       

Of which enabling 0 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -   E   
Of which transitional 0 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% - - - - - - -     T 
A.2. Taxonomy-eligible but not environmentally 
sustainable activities (not Taxonomy-aligned activities)                                       

        EL; 
N/EL 

EL; 
N/EL 

EL; 
N/E

L 
EL; 

N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
EL; 

N/EL 
                    

Transport by motorbikes, passenger cars and light 
commercial vehicles 

CCM
/CCA 
6.5 

52.42
7.274 24% EL EL N/E

L N/EL N/EL N/EL               25%     

OpEx of Taxonomy-eligible but not environmentally sustainable 
activities (not Taxonomy-aligned activities) (A.2) 

52.42
7.274 24% 24% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%               25%   

A. OpEx of Taxonomy-eligible activities (A.1+A.2) 52.42
7.274 24% 24% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%               25%   

B. TAXONOMY-NON-ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES                                       

OpEx of Taxonomy-non-eligible activities 
164.4
78.86

5 
76%                                

TOTAL 
216.9
06.13

9 
100%                                

 

emission vehicles to support the limitation of global warming to 1.5°C, in accordance with the Paris Agreement. The 

emission standards (≤50 gr CO₂/km). Beyond fleet renewal, the Group also emphasizes energy efficiency improvements at its 

efficiency highlight the Group’s active management of transition risks, ensuring alignment with long
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accountability at the highest level. The Board monitors the implementation of the company’s climate strategy and may adjust i

(≤50g CO₂/km), and the implementation of energy efficiency improvements at its operational facilities. Climate adaptation 

The transition plan will align with the Group’s strategic objectives, focusing on key areas such as fleet electrification, en
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• 

exacerbating climate change. Additionally, since the majority of the Group’s operational emissions stem from fuel consumption

the fleet’s emission intensity, positively contributing to the improvement of local air quality and the reduction of global c
—

—

• 
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• 

emission vehicles (below 50g CO₂/km)

human resources to increase the capacity for visits at the Group’s owned facilities/workshops. In terms of consumption, and 

emission vehicles. Electric vehicles and those emitting less than 50g CO₂/km are eligible for financial 

. This opportunity is directly linked to the Company’s significant investment plan, amounting to 450 million euros 
financing agreements under Greece’s 

e fleet through the introduction of electric and hybrid vehicles, which meet strict emission standards (≤50g 
CO₂/km). The vehicles acquired under this plan emit about 80% fewer pollutants compared to their predecessors, significantly 
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decrease in emissions intensity, calculated in tons of CO₂ equivalent (tCO₂e) per million euros of revenue, as reported in it

in its fleet, aiming for a significant reduction in the fleet’s average emissions intensity. This commitment, which requires 
capital expenditure, will be partially realized through the Group’s aforementioned co

emitting ≤50 grams of CO₂ per kilometer.

• Reduction of absolute GHG emissions (tCO₂e)
• Percentage reduction of total GHG emissions compared to the baseline year (%)
• GHG emissions intensity reduction (tCO₂e per million € revenue)

 

intensity (€ millions)
Financial resources allocated to action plan (OpEx) (€)
Financial resources allocated to action plan (CapEx) (€)
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Net revenue from activities in high climate impact sectors (€ millions)
Net revenue from activities other than in high climate impact sectors (€)

Carbon price applied for each metric tonne of greenhouse gas emission (€)

ssions include those resulting from the consumption of natural gas and heating oil at the Group’s facilities.

Scope 2 emissions are associated with electricity consumption at the Group’s facilities, which is supplied by external energy
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reflects the equivalent carbon dioxide (CO₂eq) emissions resulting from activities not directly controlled by the company but
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Percentage of employees covered by  workers’ representatives in EEA country 1 (%)

Complaints filed through channels for people in the company’s own workforce to raise concerns 

Severe human rights incidents connected to the company’s workforce
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• Short

• Long

• Private buyers

• Indirect end users
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>  45,2 (ΕΜΕΑ

Μ Ο

company’s governance framework is designed to 

Business ethics are at the core of Autohellas Group’s long

•

•
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The Group’s whistleblowing policy provides a secure and confidential channel for reporting any concerns related to unethical 

Employees and stakeholders are expected to uphold all the principles included in the Group’s policies, fostering a culture of

understand the company’s ethical standards from the outset. In addition, refresher training is conducted when needed, ensurin
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any conduct contradicting the company’s ethical policies. In particular

mandatory training on these topics as part of their onboarding process to ensure they understand Autohellas’s zero

through the Group’s intranet.

•

•
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convictions nor fines recorded. This reflects the company’s steadfast commitment to ethical business practices, regulatory 

overseeing compliance with the company’s policy on political neutrality and ensuring that no lobbying acti

their appointment, as this is not relevant to the company’s governance practices.
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D. LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT OF CERTIFIED 
AUDITOR ACCOUNTANT ON THE  

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
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Independent Auditor’s Limited Assurance Report on AUTOHELLAS 
TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME Sustainability 
Statement   
 
To the shareholders of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE 
ANONYME 
 

We have conducted a limited assurance engagement on the consolidated Sustainability Statement 
of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME. (hereinafter the “Company” 
and/or “Group”), included in section Sustainability Statement of the consolidated Management 
Report (hereinafter the “Sustainability Report”), for the period from 01.01.2024 to 31.12.2024.  

 

Limited assurance conclusion                    

Based on the procedures performed, as described below in the paragraph “Scope of Work 
Performed”, as well as the evidence obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that:  

• the Sustainability Statement has not been prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with article 154 of L. 4548/2018 as amended and effective by L. 5164/2024, 
which transposed Article 29(a) of EU Directive 2013/34/EU into the Greek legislation 

• the Sustainability Statement does not comply with the European Sustainability Reporting 
Standards (hereinafter “ESRS”), in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2023/2772 of the 
Commission of July 31,2023 and Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament 
and the Council of December 14, 2022 

• the process followed by the Company to identify and assess of material risks and 
opportunities (the "Process"), as set out in the Note of the Sustainability Report, does not 
comply with "Impact, Risk, and Opportunity Management" of ESRS 2 "General 
Disclosures" 

• the disclosures in section “Disclosures according to EU Taxonomy” of the Sustainability 
Statement do not comply with article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852. 

This assurance report does not extend to information on prior periods. 

Basis for the conclusion   

The limited assurance engagement was conducted in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews 
of Historical Financial Information” (hereinafter “ISAE 3000”).  

The procedures in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less in 
extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained 
in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been 
obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. 

Our responsibilities are further described in the section “Auditor’s Responsibilities”. 

Professional Ethics and Quality Management 
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Independent Auditor’s Limited Assurance Report on AUTOHELLAS 
TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME Sustainability 
Statement   
 
To the shareholders of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE 
ANONYME 
 

We have conducted a limited assurance engagement on the consolidated Sustainability Statement 
of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME. (hereinafter the “Company” 
and/or “Group”), included in section Sustainability Statement of the consolidated Management 
Report (hereinafter the “Sustainability Report”), for the period from 01.01.2024 to 31.12.2024.  

 

Limited assurance conclusion                    

Based on the procedures performed, as described below in the paragraph “Scope of Work 
Performed”, as well as the evidence obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that:  

• the Sustainability Statement has not been prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with article 154 of L. 4548/2018 as amended and effective by L. 5164/2024, 
which transposed Article 29(a) of EU Directive 2013/34/EU into the Greek legislation 

• the Sustainability Statement does not comply with the European Sustainability Reporting 
Standards (hereinafter “ESRS”), in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2023/2772 of the 
Commission of July 31,2023 and Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament 
and the Council of December 14, 2022 

• the process followed by the Company to identify and assess of material risks and 
opportunities (the "Process"), as set out in the Note of the Sustainability Report, does not 
comply with "Impact, Risk, and Opportunity Management" of ESRS 2 "General 
Disclosures" 

• the disclosures in section “Disclosures according to EU Taxonomy” of the Sustainability 
Statement do not comply with article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852. 

This assurance report does not extend to information on prior periods. 

Basis for the conclusion   

The limited assurance engagement was conducted in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews 
of Historical Financial Information” (hereinafter “ISAE 3000”).  

The procedures in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less in 
extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained 
in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been 
obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. 

Our responsibilities are further described in the section “Auditor’s Responsibilities”. 

Professional Ethics and Quality Management 
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We are independent of the Company and the Group, throughout this engagement and have 
complied with the requirements of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code), the ethics and independence 
requirements of L.4449/2017 and EU Regulation 537/2014. 

Our auditing firm applies the International Standard on Quality Management (ISQM) 1 “Quality 
Management for Audit Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other 
Assurance or Related Services engagements”, and therefore maintains a comprehensive quality 
management system that includes documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with 
ethical requirements, professional standards, and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.  

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our conclusion. 

Responsibilities of the Company’s Management for the Sustainability Report 

The Company’s and Group’s Management is responsible for the design and the implementation of 
an appropriate process to determine the required information to be included in the Sustainability 
Statement in accordance with the ESRS as well as for the disclosure of the Process in section 
“Sustainability Governance” of the Sustainability Report.  

More specifically, this responsibility includes: 

• Obtaining an understanding of the context in which the Company and Group activities and 
business relationships take place and understanding the affected stakeholders 

• Identifying the actual and potential impacts (both negative and positive) related to 
sustainability matters, as well as the risks and opportunities that affect, or could 
reasonably be expected to affect, the Company’s and Group’s financial position, financial 
performance, cash flows, access to funding or cost of capital in the short-, medium-, or 
long-term 

• Assessing the materiality of the identified impacts, risks and opportunities related to 
sustainability matters through the selection and application of appropriate thresholds; and 

• Formulating assumptions that are reasonable under the existing circumstances 

The Company’s ang Group’s Management is further responsible for the preparation of the 
Sustainability Report, in accordance with article 154 of L. 4548/2018, as amended and in force by 
L. 5164/2024 which transposed Article 29(a) of EU Directive 2013/34 into the Greek legislation.  

In this context, the Company’s and Group’s Management is responsible for: 

• Compliance of the Sustainability Statement with the ESRS 
• Preparing the disclosures in section “Disclosures according to EU Taxonomy” of the 

Sustainability Report, in compliance with the requirements of article 8 of EU Regulation 
2020/852 

• Designing and implementing such internal controls procedures as Management 
determines are necessary to ensure that the Sustainability Statement is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

• Selecting and implementing appropriate reporting methods, including assumptions and 
estimates about individual disclosures in the Sustainability Statement that have been 
evaluated as reasonable under the circumstances. 

The Company’s Audit Committee is responsible for supervising the process of the preparation of the 
Company’s Sustainability Report. 
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Independent Auditor’s Limited Assurance Report on AUTOHELLAS 
TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME Sustainability 
Statement   
 
To the shareholders of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE 
ANONYME 
 

We have conducted a limited assurance engagement on the consolidated Sustainability Statement 
of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME. (hereinafter the “Company” 
and/or “Group”), included in section Sustainability Statement of the consolidated Management 
Report (hereinafter the “Sustainability Report”), for the period from 01.01.2024 to 31.12.2024.  

 

Limited assurance conclusion                    

Based on the procedures performed, as described below in the paragraph “Scope of Work 
Performed”, as well as the evidence obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that:  

• the Sustainability Statement has not been prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with article 154 of L. 4548/2018 as amended and effective by L. 5164/2024, 
which transposed Article 29(a) of EU Directive 2013/34/EU into the Greek legislation 

• the Sustainability Statement does not comply with the European Sustainability Reporting 
Standards (hereinafter “ESRS”), in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2023/2772 of the 
Commission of July 31,2023 and Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament 
and the Council of December 14, 2022 

• the process followed by the Company to identify and assess of material risks and 
opportunities (the "Process"), as set out in the Note of the Sustainability Report, does not 
comply with "Impact, Risk, and Opportunity Management" of ESRS 2 "General 
Disclosures" 

• the disclosures in section “Disclosures according to EU Taxonomy” of the Sustainability 
Statement do not comply with article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852. 

This assurance report does not extend to information on prior periods. 

Basis for the conclusion   

The limited assurance engagement was conducted in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews 
of Historical Financial Information” (hereinafter “ISAE 3000”).  

The procedures in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less in 
extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained 
in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been 
obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. 

Our responsibilities are further described in the section “Auditor’s Responsibilities”. 

Professional Ethics and Quality Management 
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Inherent limitations in preparing the Sustainability Report 

As mentioned in Note to the Sustainability Statement "Methodologies and Assumptions Applied in 
Identifying Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities", the data used includes estimates from third-party 
providers or sector-average values. The assumptions are based on historical performance data, 
predictive models, and scenario analysis to forecast future trends and potential regulatory 
developments affecting fleet management, emissions, and sustainable mobility solutions. These 
estimates are based on recognized frameworks available at the time of the analysis, however, there 
is a high level of uncertainty due to limitations in methodologies and data, as well as the dependence 
of the measurements on third-party data. 

In reporting forward-looking information under ESRS, the Company’s Management is required to 
prepare forward-looking information based on disclosed assumptions, regarding future events and 
possible future actions of the Company and the Group. The actual outcome of these actions may be 
different, as anticipated events do not often occur as expected. 

Additionally, the section "Climate Change Mitigation" of the Sustainability Statement includes 
information related to the processes for assessing material climate-related impacts, risks, and 
opportunities, as well as their interaction with the strategy and business model.  

Our assignment covered the items listed in the “Scope of Work Performed” section to obtain limited 
assurance based on the procedures included in the Program. Our assignment does not constitute 
an audit or review of historical financial information, in accordance with applicable International 
Standards on Auditing or International Standards on Assurance Engagements, and therefore we do 
not express any assurance other than that set out in the "Scope of Work Performed" section. 

Auditor’s responsibilities 

This limited assurance report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Article 154C 
of L. 4548/2018 and Article 32A of L.4449/2017. 

Our responsibility is to prepare and perform the limited assurance engagement to obtain limited 
assurance as to whether the Sustainability Statement is free from material misstatement, due to 
fraud or error, and to issue a limited assurance report that includes our conclusion. Error may arise 
from fraud or misstatement and is considered material when, individually or in the aggregate, it could 
reasonably be expected to affect the financial decisions of users made on the basis of the 
Sustainability Statement taken as a whole.  

In the context of a limited assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised), we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the engagement. 

Our responsibilities with respect to the Sustainability Report, in relation to the Process, include: 

• Conducting risk assessment procedures, including an understanding of the relevant 
internal control procedures, to identify risks related to whether the Process, followed by 
the Company and the Group to determine the information reported in the Sustainability 
Statement does not meet the applicable requirements of the ESRS, but not for the 
purpose of providing a conclusion regarding the effectiveness of the internal controls on 
the Process and 

• Preparing and conducting procedures to assess whether the Process to identify the 
information reported in the Sustainability Statement is consistent with the description of 
the Process as disclosed in section “Impact, Risk and Opportunity Management [ESRS 2 
IRO-1] και [ESRS2 SBM-3]” of the Report. 
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of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME. (hereinafter the “Company” 
and/or “Group”), included in section Sustainability Statement of the consolidated Management 
Report (hereinafter the “Sustainability Report”), for the period from 01.01.2024 to 31.12.2024.  

 

Limited assurance conclusion                    

Based on the procedures performed, as described below in the paragraph “Scope of Work 
Performed”, as well as the evidence obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that:  

• the Sustainability Statement has not been prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with article 154 of L. 4548/2018 as amended and effective by L. 5164/2024, 
which transposed Article 29(a) of EU Directive 2013/34/EU into the Greek legislation 

• the Sustainability Statement does not comply with the European Sustainability Reporting 
Standards (hereinafter “ESRS”), in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2023/2772 of the 
Commission of July 31,2023 and Directive (EU) 2022/2464 of the European Parliament 
and the Council of December 14, 2022 

• the process followed by the Company to identify and assess of material risks and 
opportunities (the "Process"), as set out in the Note of the Sustainability Report, does not 
comply with "Impact, Risk, and Opportunity Management" of ESRS 2 "General 
Disclosures" 

• the disclosures in section “Disclosures according to EU Taxonomy” of the Sustainability 
Statement do not comply with article 8 of EU Regulation 2020/852. 

This assurance report does not extend to information on prior periods. 

Basis for the conclusion   

The limited assurance engagement was conducted in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews 
of Historical Financial Information” (hereinafter “ISAE 3000”).  

The procedures in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less in 
extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained 
in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been 
obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. 

Our responsibilities are further described in the section “Auditor’s Responsibilities”. 

Professional Ethics and Quality Management 
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We are further responsible for:  

• Conducting risk assessment procedures, including an understanding of the relevant 
internal controls, to identify those disclosures that may be materially misstated, whether 
due to fraud or error, but not for the purpose of expressing a conclusion regarding the 
effectiveness of the Company’s and the Group's internal controls. 

• Preparing and conducting procedures related to those disclosures of the Sustainability 
Report, in which a material error is likely to occur. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than that arising from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the deviations from 
internal controls. 

Scope of Work Performed  

Our engagement includes performing procedures and obtaining assurance evidence for the purpose 
of forming a limited assurance conclusion and covers only the limited assurance procedures set out 
in the assurance program issued by the 22.1.2025 decision of the ELTE's (hereinafter "Program"), 
as formulated for the purpose of issuing a limited assurance report on the Company’s and the 
Group's Sustainability Report. 

Our procedures were designed to obtain a limited level of assurance on which to base our conclusion 
and which do not provide all of the evidence that would be required to provide a reasonable level of 
assurance. 

 

Athens, 12 March 2025 

Certified Auditor Accountant 

Athina Moustaki 
SOEL R.Ν.: 28871 
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E. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Amounts in €

The notes on pages 119 to 181 are an integral part of these financial stetements.



115

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Amounts in €

Amounts in €

The notes on pages 119 to 181 are an integral part of these financial stetements.



116

ANNUAL REPORT2024

Amounts in €

The notes on pages 119 to 181 are an integral part of these financial stetements.



117

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Amounts in €

Amounts in €

The notes on pages 119 to 181 are an integral part of these financial stetements.



118

ANNUAL REPORT2024

Ποσά σε € Σημ.

The notes on pages 119 to 181 are an integral part of these financial stetements.
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Trading Société Anonyme was incorporated in Greece in 1962 and its shares are traded in the “Travel & 
Tourism” sector of the Athens Stock Exchange

Autohellas’

The Group’s principal activities comprise car rentals and car sales

The Company’s registered office is at Viltanioti 31, Kifissia, Attica, Greece. The Company’s website address is 

The annual financial statements, the independent auditor’s reports and the Board of Directors’ reports of the companies that 
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are posted in the Company’s website 

These financial statements consist of the standalone financial statements of Autohellas (the “Company”) and the 
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together “Autohellas” or the “Group”) for the year ended 

, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as adopted by the European Union 

. The Group’s evaluation of the effect of these new standards, amendments to standards and 

• IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (Amendments) (
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• 2020 Amendment ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non current’

‘settlement’ of a liability.

• 2022 Amendments ‘Non current liabilities with covenants’

• IFRS 16 (Amendment) ‘Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’ (

• IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments’ (Amendments) 

 

• IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ 

• IFRS 18 ‘'Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements’ (

• —
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• —
specified by IFRS that are used in public communications to communicate management’s view of an aspect of a 
company’s financial performance. To promote tran

• 
• 

• IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures’ (

• enables subsidiaries to keep only one set of accounting records―to meet the needs of both their parent 

• reduces disclosure requirements―IFRS 19 permits reduced disclosures better suited to the needs of the users 

• Narrow scope amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments’: Disclosures’ (

 

 

 

 

• 
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IFRS 1 ‘First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’

inconsistency between the wording in IFRS 1 and requirements for hedge accounting in IFRS 9 ‘Financial 
Instruments’. 

IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’ and its accompanying ‘Guidance on implementing IFRS 7’
• Gain or loss on derecognition: The amendment updates the phrase used for ‘unobservable inputs’ in 

IFRS 7 to make it consistent with IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ and includes cross references to 

• 

• 

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’

IFRS 9 to the definition of ‘transaction price’ in IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ while the term 
‘transaction price’ is used in part

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’
Determination of a ‘de facto agent’: The

IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’
method: The amendment replaces the term ‘cost method’ with ‘at cost’ since the term is no longer defined 
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• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

controlling interest’s proportionate share 
of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets

• 
• 
• 
• 
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Group’s share of the post acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of 

When the Group’s share of 

Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impa
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The segments are determined on the basis of internal reporting to the Group’s Board of Directors (as chief operating decision

Consequently, segment information is presented in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the Group’s car leasing

 

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary 
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
(EUR), which is Autohellas’ functional and presentation currency

 

 

• 

• 

• 
• 
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The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applic
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• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

 

presented within the caption ‘Trade and other receivables’. 
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be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of 

method, less loss allowance. See note 4.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies

 

•
• those to be measured at amortised cost
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The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the 

 

 

 

measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow 

 

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present 

to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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less subsequent depreciation for buildings. A revaluation surplus is credited to fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 

income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously 

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater th
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employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period a
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attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders as 

attributable to the Company’s equity holders
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Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the p

 

 

• 
• 
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or loss in “Other gains/(losses ”.
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judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past histo
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, cash flow and
interest rate risk and price  risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuse
volatility of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s cash flows. 

The Group’s risk management is predominantly controlled by a central treasury department (group treasury) under policies 

p’s operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific

 

 

are denominated in currencies other than the local entity’s functional currency, as well as net investments in foreign operat

he Euro, which is the reporting currency of the Group. More specifically, the Group’s subsidiaries in Romania, the 
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–
–

 

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the statemen

The Group’s equity investments that are publicly traded on the Athens Stock Exchange are classified as at fair 

 

 

Greek subsidiaries, that represent around 80% of the Group’s total cash and cash equivalents are invested in Greek systemic 
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•
•Finance lease receivables
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the end of the reporting period the Group held deposits at call of € €76

 

–
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The tables below analyse the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant 

 

 

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
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▪ 

▪ 

Total “Equity” (

the Group’s strategy was to maintain a gearing ratio within 1 to 2 for both the Group and the Company

 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

 

•• with the exception of purchasing shares with sole purpose to be distributed among its´ 
cannot exceed 10% of the company’s share capital and cannot result in the reduction of equity to an amount less 
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•• 

•• Annually, at least 1/20th of the company’s net profit is deducted to form a statutory reserve, which will be used exclusively

nce it reaches 1/3rd of the company’s share capital.
•• The payment of an annual dividend to shareholders in cash, at an amount equal to at least 35% of the company’s net earnings, 

after deducting the statutory reserve and the net result from the valuation of the company’s assets and liabilities at fair v

capital. In this case, dividend that hasn’t been distributed and up to an amount equal to 35% of the above mentioned net 
has to be reported as a “Reserve to be Capitalised”, within 4 years’ time by an issue of new shares, given to eligible 

 

€
the Board of Directors’ proposal for distribution of dividends to the €

 

• 

• 

• 
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, the Group owns land and buildings and investment properties measured at fair value of €
€35

 

independent valuations. The directors determine a property’s value within a range of reasonable fair value 

• 

• 
• capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from 

 

The value of unlisted securities is determined based on the management’s estimates of the expected future profitability of un
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land and buildings’ valuation methods are presented in Note 3(v) and 5.
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of the Representatives and on behalf of the Creditors, for a total amount of €105,
insurance contracts have been concluded on the Group's cars for a total amount of €

of the Representatives and on behalf of the Creditors, for a total amount of €103,
variable insurance contracts have been concluded on the Company's cars amounting to €
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Σημ.
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€
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€25,939,818, (b) the acquisition of AUTOTECHNICA FLEET SERVICES d.o.o. in Croatia in 2016 
€1,312,539 €45,473 ALUGUER DE AUTOMÓVEIS 

S.A. in 2022 amounting to €16,159,605.

 

 

DE AUTOMÓVEIS S.
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

amounted to €60.5 million with profit
of €5.8 million and the latter's amounted to €30.8 million with profit €1.9 million. 
HYUNDAI HELLAS amounted to € of €

amounted to € €
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ALUGUER DE AUTOMÓVEIS S.A. 

ALUGUER DE AUTOMÓVEIS S.A.

ALUGUER DE AUTOMÓVEIS S.A. (HR), 
activity of HR Aluguer de Automóveis concerns short

HR Automóveis Portugal

price of 89.56% of HR was €31.5 million, while under profitability conditions for the period 2022
in total by an additional €7.5 million
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Μ

 

• 

• 

• 
“ ”

• 

ENERGY from the société anonyme with the 
“SPORTSLAND SPORT FACILITIES TOURISM AND HOTELS S.A.”
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• 

 

existing shareholder in "INSTACAR S.A." for €2 million. Following this transaction, the Group's participation in Instacar amo

.A. by €

€375,000. The amount was paid in January 2025

During the fiscal year, the Company participated in a share capital increase of "SPORTSLAND S.A." by contributing €75,000, 
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Furthermore, the Company reduced its investments in bank bonds by €4,491,000, raising €4.5 million from the secondary market.

 

- participation in iTeam Technology Solutions S.A., amounting to €1
- , amounting to €
- participation in Iberis Bluetech Fund, amounting to €6
- 

 

–

–

Σύνολο
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€275,000,000. In November 2023, the Company sold 9 interest rate swap agreements with a total nominal value of €150,000,000, 

hedging relationships of the Company, with a total nominal value of €125,000,000.

In January 2024, the Company entered into one additional interest rate swap agreement for an amount of €25,000,000.

year, the Company terminated all interest rate swap agreements amounting to €150,000,000, partly due to 

As a result of the above, the Company received a net amount of €569,000, while the accumulated deferred gain that existed in 
equity, amounting to €

 

€ €540,190
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roup’s impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance are provided in note 

 

During the year, an inventory impairment was recognized at the net realizable value of €234,795 as an expense and is included
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Company’s share capital amounted as at €
with a nominal value of €0.08 each. All shares are common, have been paid in full, participate in earnings and are entitled t

 

of 19,000 free shares, with a total value of €217,360, within the framework of the decision approved by the aforementioned 

treasury shares with a nominal value of €0.08 each, 
with a total value of €
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controlling interests arise from the companies Hyundai Hellas, Kia Hellas and HR Aluguer de Automóveis and the change 
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financial data of Hyundai Hellas, Kia Hellas and HR Aluguer de Automóveis are 

Automóveis 

Automóveis 

 

Common Bond Loan €200εκατ.

r of the Representatives and on behalf of the Creditors, for a total amount of €105,
insurance contracts have been concluded on the Group's cars for a total amount of €1
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Representatives and on behalf of the Creditors, for a total amount of €103,
variable insurance contracts have been concluded on the Company's cars amounting to €
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• Autohellas bond issuance of €200 million.
• amounting to €
• Raising new funds through Securitization amounting to €40 million
• of Autohellas bond loans amounting to €85 million.

• Autohellas bond loan repayments amounting to €

 

“Greece 
2.0,” which falls within the framework of co
amount of the loan was €136,077,485, of which €85,048,428 was covered by the RRF with a fixed interest rate from the Fun
resources, and the remaining €51,029,057 was covered by a systemic bank with a variable contractual interest rate (EURIBOR + 

In February 2023, the Company signed its second Bond Loan Agreement under the National Recovery and Resilience Plan “Greece 
2.0,” which also falls within the framework of co
€104,000,000, of which €65,000,000 was covered by the RRF with a fixed interest rate from the Fund's resources, and the 
remaining €39,000,000 was covered by a systemic bank with a variable contractual interest rate (EURIBOR + margin). The procee

In November 2024, the Company signed its third Bond Loan Agreement under the National Recovery and Resilience Plan “Greece 
2.0,” which falls within the framework of co
€120,000,000, of which €75,000,000 was covered by the RRF with a fixed interest rate from the Fund's resources, and the 
remaining €45,000,000 was covered by a systemic bank with a variable contractual interest rate (EURIBOR + margin). The procee

, amounting to €
€1

’ amounted to €

 

amount of €200 million, divided into up to 200,000 bonds with a nominal value of €1,000 

with a nominal value of €1,000 each were allocated (the "Bonds") resulting in the raising of funds amounting to €200 million.
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The total valid demand expressed by investors who participated in the Public Offering amounted to €453.46 million. The broad 

8,253. The sale price of the Bonds was set at even, i.e. €1,000 per Bond. The final yield of the Notes and the 

The funds raised, amounting to €200 million at the balance sheet date, have been used as follows: 
• An amount of €100 million was allocated for the payment of the debt of the Company's existing bank loan. 
• An amount of €
• An amount of €39.4 million was allocated to cover working capital financing needs.
• An amount of €
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In July 2024, the Company entered into a €220 million financing agreement through the securitization of receivables with the 

. As of December 31, 2024, the financing amount stood at €220 million, and the expected revolving duration of 
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Σημ.

 

€ : €
services provided by the Group’s importing companies.
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benefit of €1.5 million.

–

accounting policy, amounting to €9,897,455.

The average effective interest rate for the Group’s short

The average effective interest rate for the Company’s short

 

 

 



177

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

 

 

 “ II”

–

es, totaling €220,562, which is allocated between Cyprus and Bulgaria, with amounts of €184,357 and €36,205 respectively
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ALUGUER DE AUTOMÓVEIS S.A.

TECHNOCAR SINGLE MEMBER TRADING SOCIÉTÉ ANONYME

 

conduct their tax audit. However, the Company’s management estimates that the results from 
regular tax audits from tax authorities, if conducted, will not have a significant effect on the company’s financial position
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price of €1.50 and a total value of €4,519,830.
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F. ANNEX - REPORT ON THE USE OF FUNDS
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million euros (€200,000,000), with a duration of five (5) years, divided into 200,000 dematerialized, common, registered bond
nominal value of €1,000 each, which was implemented in accordance with the dec
TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIÉTÉ ANONYME dated 08.01.2024 and the approval of the content of the Prospectus by the Hellenic 
Capital Market Commission dated 11.01.2024, a total amount of two hundred million euros (€2
costs amounted to €4.6 million, of which the amount of €3.8 million as at 31.12.2024 was covered with the amounts raised by t

 

€)
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PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, GEMI: 001520401000, T: +30 210 6874400, www.pwc.gr 

Athens: 65 Kifissias Avenue, 15124 Maroussi | T:+30 210 6874400 
Thessaloniki: Agias Anastasias & Laertou, 55535 Pylaia | T: +30 2310 488880  
Ioannina: 2 Plateia Pargis, 1st floor, 45332 | T: +30 2651 313376 
Patra: 2A 28is Oktovriou & Othonos Amalias 11, 26223 | T: +30 2616 009208 

This agreed-upon procedures report and the Report on the Use of Funds from the Issuance of 
Common Bond Loan that are referred to herein have been translated for the original documents 
prepared in the Greek language. The agreed-upon procedures report has been issued with respect 
to the Greek language Report on the Use of Funds from the Issuance of Common Bond Loan and in 
the event that differences exist between the translated Report on the Use of Funds from the 
Issuance of Common Bond Loan and the agreed-upon procedures report and the respective 
original Greek language documents, the Greek language documents will prevail. 

Report of Agreed-Upon Procedures on the Report on the Use of Funds from the Issuance of 
Common Bond Loan 

To the Board of Directors ("management") of AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE 
ANONYME S.A. 

For submission to the Hellenic Capital Market Commission and the Athens Stock Exchange 

Purpose of this agreed-upon procedures report and restriction on its use and distribution 

The purpose of our report is exclusively to assist AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE 
ANONYME S.A. (the "Company") in submitting to the Hellenic Capital Market Commission the Report on the 
Use of Funds from the Issuance of Common Bond Loan of the Company (Appendix A), which resulted from 
the issuance of a bond loan, which has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Decision 
25/17.07.2008 of the Governing Committee of Stock Market Operations of the Athens Stock Exchange and 
Decision 8/754/14.04.2016 of the Board of Directors of the Hellenic Capital Market Commission, as 
amended and in force by Decision 10A/1038/30.10.2024 of the Board of Directors of the Hellenic Capital 
Market Commission (the "Subject Matter"). The aforementioned increase took place on January 23, 2024, in 
accordance with the decision of the Company's Board of Directors dated January 8, 2024. 

This report is not suitable for any other purpose and is intended solely for the management of the Company, 
and therefore we do not assume any responsibility in relation to the performance of the following agreed-
upon procedures towards any third party, other than the Company. Consequently, this report should not be 
used or distributed to any other party, except to be provided for informational purposes only to the Hellenic 
Capital Market Commission and the Athens Stock Exchange. 

Responsibilities of the management 
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This agreed-upon procedures engagement is not an assurance engagement. Therefore, we do not 
express an opinion or assurance conclusion. If we had performed additional procedures, other matters 
might have come to our attention that would have been reported. 

Professional ethics and quality management 

We have complied with the requirements of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, as incorporated into Greek legislation, and the 
ethical and independence requirements of Law 4449/2017, as well as Regulation (EU) 537/2014. 

Our audit firm applies International Standard on Quality Management (ISQM) 1 "Quality Management 
for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance or Related 
Services Engagements" and, consequently, designs, implements, and operates a comprehensive 
quality management system that includes documented policies and procedures regarding compliance 
with ethical requirements, professional standards, and applicable legal and regulatory requirements. 

Procedures and Findings 

We performed the procedures described below for the Subject Matter, which were agreed upon with the 
Company, in the terms of the engagement letter dated 28 February 2025: 

Procedures performed Findings

1. Examine whether the content of the 
attached Report on the Use of Funds from 
the Issuance of Common Bond Loan of 
the Company complies with the provisions 
of Decision 25/17.07.2008 of the 
Governing Committee of Stock Market 
Operations of the Athens Stock Exchange 
and Decision 8/754/14.04.2016 of the 
Board of Directors of the Hellenic Capital 
Market Commission, as amended and in 
force by Decision 10A/1038/30.10.2024 of 
the Board of Directors of the Hellenic 
Capital Market Commission. 

The content of the attached Report on the 
Use of Funds from the Issuance of 
Common Bond Loan of the Company 
complies with the provisions of Decision 
25/17.07.2008 of the Governing Committee 
of Stock Market Operations of the Athens 
Stock Exchange and Decision 
8/754/14.04.2016 of the Board of Directors 
of the Hellenic Capital Market Commission, 
as amended and in force by Decision 
10A/1038/30.10.2024 of the Board of 
Directors of the Hellenic Capital Market 
Commission. 

2. Examine the consistency of the content of 
the attached Report on the Use of Funds 
from the Issuance of Common Bond Loan 
of the Company with the statements in the 
Prospectus issued by the Company on 
January 11, 2024, as well as with the 
relevant decisions and announcements of 
its competent bodies. 

The content of the attached Report on the 
Use of Funds from the Issuance of 
Common Bond Loan of the Company is 
consistent with the statements in the 
Prospectus issued by the Company on 
January 11, 2024, as well as with the 
relevant decisions and announcements of 
its competent bodies. 
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3. Compare the amounts mentioned as 
disbursements in the attached Report on 
the Use of Funds from the Issuance of 
Common Bond Loan with the 
corresponding amounts recognized in the 
Company's records and documents during 
the referenced period. 

We compared the amounts mentioned as 
disbursements in the attached Report on 
the Use of Funds from the Issuance of 
Common Bond Loan with the 
corresponding amounts recognized in the 
Company's records and documents during 
the referenced period. 

No exceptions arose from the performance 
of this agreed-upon procedure. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A. 
Certified Auditors – Accountants 
65 Kifissias Avenue 
151 24 Marousi 
SOEL Reg. 113 

The Certified Auditor Accountant  
Andreas Riris 
SOEL Reg. No 65601 

Athens, 12 March 2025 
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Athens, 13 November 2024 

 
 

Third Quarter and Nine-Month Financial Results 2024 
 

Revenue of €749.1 mn in the nine-month period, with profitability of €76 mn after taxes 
Continuation of positive momentum in Rentals primarily in Greece but also abroad 

during the 3rd quarter of the year 
 

Autohellas Group announces the results for the third quarter of 2024, with consolidated Revenue 
amounting to €275.9 mn. In the same period, EBITDA amounted to €98.9 mn, while consolidated 
Earnings after tax (EAT) stood at €39 mn compared to €43.5 mn in the same period last year. 

 
For the nine-month period, consolidated Revenue reached €749.1 mn, compared to €762.5 mn 
in the same period of last year. Similarly, EBITDA amounted to €219.7 mn, up by 2.6%, while 
consolidated Earnings after tax (EAT) stood at €76 mn, showing a marginal increase of 1.8%. Both 
Revenue and operational profitability were supported by another year of exceptionally positive 
management of the demand for short-term, primarily tourism-related, rentals, as well as by a 
significant increase in the fleet for long-term rentals over the past 12 months. In contrast, the car 
trade activity saw a slight decline compared to 2023 but maintained substantial profitability. 

 
Overall, the activity of short-term and long-term rentals in Greece and in other countries where 
the Group operates, utilizes a fleet of over 61,000 vehicles.  

 
Total profitability for the nine-month period was supported by €9.0 mn in dividends from Aegean 
Airlines and Trade Estates. 

 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED RESULTS 

Amouns in '000€ Q3 2024 Q3 2023 % Δ 9M 2024 9M 2023 % Δ 
Revenue 275,896 285,647 -3.4% 749,101 762,474 -1.8% 
EBITDA 98,934 94,532 4.7% 219,737 214,178 2.6% 
Operating profit 58,106 62,876 -7.6% 113,246 119,376 -5.1% 
Earnings before tax (EBT) 49,491 54,890 -9.8% 91,792 95,026 -3.4% 
Earnings after tax (EAT) 38,975 43,477 -10.4% 75,989 74,678 1.8% 
Profit for the period attributable to 
the owners of the parent 37,784 41,065 -8.0% 72,039 68,255 5.5% 

 
  

 

 
Αθήνα, 13 Νοεμβρίου 2024 

 
 

Αποτελέσματα 3ου Τριμήνου και Εννεάμηνου 2024 
 

Κύκλος Εργασιών €749,1 εκατ. στο εννεάμηνο, με κερδοφορία €76 εκατ. μετά από φόρους 
Συνέχιση της θετικής δυναμικής στις Μισθώσεις κυρίως σε Ελλάδα αλλά και εξωτερικό  

στο 3ο τρίμηνο του έτους 
 

Ο Όμιλος Autohellas ανακοινώνει τα αποτελέσματα του τρίτου τριμήνου του 2024, με τον 
ενοποιημένο Κύκλο Εργασιών να ανέρχεται σε €275,9 εκατ. Κατά την ίδια περίοδο το ΕΒΙTDA 
ανήλθε στα €98,9 εκατ. ενώ τα ενοποιημένα Κέρδη μετά από Φόρους διαμορφώθηκαν σε 
€39 εκατ. έναντι €43,5 εκατ. την αντίστοιχη περσινή περίοδο. 

 
Σε επίπεδο εννεάμηνου, ο ενοποιημένος Κύκλος Εργασιών ανήλθε σε €749,1 εκατ. έναντι 
€762,5 εκατ. την αντίστοιχη περσινή περίοδο.  Αντίστοιχα, το ΕΒΙTDA ανήλθε στα €219,7 εκατ., 
αυξημένο κατά 2,6%, ενώ τα ενοποιημένα Κέρδη μετά από Φόρους διαμορφώθηκαν σε 
€76 εκατ., οριακά αυξημένα κατά 1,8%. Ο Κύκλος Εργασιών αλλά και η λειτουργική κερδοφορία 
στηρίχθηκαν από την για άλλη μια χρονιά ιδιαίτερα θετική διαχείριση της ζήτησης για 
βραχυχρόνιες, κυρίως τουριστικές, μισθώσεις αλλά και από τη σημαντική αύξηση του στόλου 
των μακροχρόνιων ενοικιάσεων κατά τους τελευταίους 12 μήνες. Αντίθετα η δραστηριότητα της 
εμπορίας αυτοκίνητων είχε μικρή υποχώρηση σε σχέση με το 2023 διατηρώντας όμως 
σημαντική κερδοφορία. 

 
Συνολικά η δραστηριότητα των βραχυχρόνιων και μακροχρόνιων μισθώσεων στην Ελλάδα και 
στις υπόλοιπες χώρες που δραστηριοποιείται ο Όμιλος απασχολεί στόλο που υπερβαίνει τα 
61.000 αυτοκίνητα.  
 
Η συνολική κερδοφορία του εννεάμηνου υποστηρίχθηκε με €9,0 εκατ. συνολικά από μερίσματα 
της Aegean και της Trade Estates. 

 
ΣΥΝΟΠΤΙΚΑ ΕΝΟΠΟΙΗΜΕΝΑ ΑΠΟΤΕΛΕΣΜΑΤΑ 

Ποσά σε '000€ Q3 2024 Q3 2023 % Δ 9Μ 2024 9Μ 2023 % Δ 
Κύκλος εργασιών 275.896 285.647 -3,4% 749.101 762.474 -1,8% 
EBITDA 98.934 94.532 4,7% 219.737 214.178 2,6% 
Λειτουργικό κέρδος 58.106 62.876 -7,6% 113.246 119.376 -5,1% 
Κέρδη προ φόρων (EBT) 49.491 54.890 -9,8% 91.792 95.026 -3,4% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους (EAT) 38.975 43.477 -10,4% 75.989 74.678 1,8% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους 
αποδιδόμενα στους ιδιοκτήτες της 
μητρικής 

37.784 41.065 -8,0% 72.039 68.255 5,5% 
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In more detail: 

 
Revenue from the Car Rental activity in Greece increased by 6.9% in the nine-month period of 
2024, reaching €221.7 mn. After three years of strong growth and profitability, primarily in short-
term/ tourism-related rentals, 2024 has evolved into a robust year for Autohellas' growth also in 
long-term rentals which derive exclusively from the domestic market. 

 
In the third quarter of 2024, the strongest one due to seasonality, short-term rentals in Greece 
saw an increase marked by high fleet utilization rates across all regions of the country. This was 
a result of the strong operational structure of the organization and the network, despite the 
significantly increased car rental supply in the market. 

 
Revenue from the International activity related to car rentals reached a total of €141.6 mn, 
marking a 4.2% increase. In markets outside Greece, the Group effectively leverages a mix of 
short-term and long-term rentals along with significant outsourcing of services to keep fixed costs 
low, achieving substantial operational profitability despite smaller operational scales per market. 
For 2024, profitability remained at a satisfactory level across all international markets, except in 
Portugal. 

 
The Car Trade activity in Greece showed a decline, contributing a total of €385.9 mn to the 
Group's Revenue, compared to €419.3 mn in the same period of last year. This change is mainly 
attributed (unlike 2023) to the lack of accumulated unfulfilled orders (due to insufficient 
production) from previous years. It is noted that the activity of Italian Motion (FIAT/JEEP/Alfa 
Romeo), which is accounted for using the equity method, and therefore does not participate in 
the consolidated Revenue, recorded sales of €116.4 mn during the nine-month period of 2024, 
enhancing the Group's overall activity. 

 
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE PER SEGMENT 

Amounts in '000€ Q3 2024 Q3 2023 % Δ 9M 2024 9M 2023 % Δ 
Revenue 275,896 285,647 -3.4% 749,101 762,474 -1.8% 
Rentals Greece 98,220 92,667 6.0% 221,661 207,296 6.9% 
International Segment 62,078 59,266 4.7% 141,561 135,907 4.2% 
Car Trade Greece 115,598 133,714 -13.5% 385,879 419,271 -8.0% 
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€256.1 compared to €255.2
€32.3

compared to €29.8
€29.2 to €23.8

€473.2 compared to €476.8

€42.3 €40.1
€37 compared to €31.2

€34.3 compared to €27.2

by €8.0 €1.0

Group’s financing 

At the same time, the Group’s 30/06/2024 amounted to €457.4

'000€ % Δ % Δ
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Αποτελέσματα 3ου Τριμήνου και Εννεάμηνου 2024 
 

Κύκλος Εργασιών €749,1 εκατ. στο εννεάμηνο, με κερδοφορία €76 εκατ. μετά από φόρους 
Συνέχιση της θετικής δυναμικής στις Μισθώσεις κυρίως σε Ελλάδα αλλά και εξωτερικό  

στο 3ο τρίμηνο του έτους 
 

Ο Όμιλος Autohellas ανακοινώνει τα αποτελέσματα του τρίτου τριμήνου του 2024, με τον 
ενοποιημένο Κύκλο Εργασιών να ανέρχεται σε €275,9 εκατ. Κατά την ίδια περίοδο το ΕΒΙTDA 
ανήλθε στα €98,9 εκατ. ενώ τα ενοποιημένα Κέρδη μετά από Φόρους διαμορφώθηκαν σε 
€39 εκατ. έναντι €43,5 εκατ. την αντίστοιχη περσινή περίοδο. 

 
Σε επίπεδο εννεάμηνου, ο ενοποιημένος Κύκλος Εργασιών ανήλθε σε €749,1 εκατ. έναντι 
€762,5 εκατ. την αντίστοιχη περσινή περίοδο.  Αντίστοιχα, το ΕΒΙTDA ανήλθε στα €219,7 εκατ., 
αυξημένο κατά 2,6%, ενώ τα ενοποιημένα Κέρδη μετά από Φόρους διαμορφώθηκαν σε 
€76 εκατ., οριακά αυξημένα κατά 1,8%. Ο Κύκλος Εργασιών αλλά και η λειτουργική κερδοφορία 
στηρίχθηκαν από την για άλλη μια χρονιά ιδιαίτερα θετική διαχείριση της ζήτησης για 
βραχυχρόνιες, κυρίως τουριστικές, μισθώσεις αλλά και από τη σημαντική αύξηση του στόλου 
των μακροχρόνιων ενοικιάσεων κατά τους τελευταίους 12 μήνες. Αντίθετα η δραστηριότητα της 
εμπορίας αυτοκίνητων είχε μικρή υποχώρηση σε σχέση με το 2023 διατηρώντας όμως 
σημαντική κερδοφορία. 

 
Συνολικά η δραστηριότητα των βραχυχρόνιων και μακροχρόνιων μισθώσεων στην Ελλάδα και 
στις υπόλοιπες χώρες που δραστηριοποιείται ο Όμιλος απασχολεί στόλο που υπερβαίνει τα 
61.000 αυτοκίνητα.  
 
Η συνολική κερδοφορία του εννεάμηνου υποστηρίχθηκε με €9,0 εκατ. συνολικά από μερίσματα 
της Aegean και της Trade Estates. 

 
ΣΥΝΟΠΤΙΚΑ ΕΝΟΠΟΙΗΜΕΝΑ ΑΠΟΤΕΛΕΣΜΑΤΑ 

Ποσά σε '000€ Q3 2024 Q3 2023 % Δ 9Μ 2024 9Μ 2023 % Δ 
Κύκλος εργασιών 275.896 285.647 -3,4% 749.101 762.474 -1,8% 
EBITDA 98.934 94.532 4,7% 219.737 214.178 2,6% 
Λειτουργικό κέρδος 58.106 62.876 -7,6% 113.246 119.376 -5,1% 
Κέρδη προ φόρων (EBT) 49.491 54.890 -9,8% 91.792 95.026 -3,4% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους (EAT) 38.975 43.477 -10,4% 75.989 74.678 1,8% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους 
αποδιδόμενα στους ιδιοκτήτες της 
μητρικής 

37.784 41.065 -8,0% 72.039 68.255 5,5% 
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Athens, 22 May 2024 

 

Autohellas Group Financial Results 1st Quarter 2024 
 

Autohellas announces the results of the first quarter of 2024, with consolidated Turnover 
amounting to €217.1m against €221.6m in 2023, and EBITDA amounting to €51.5m against 47.8m 
in the corresponding quarter of last year. The Earnings before tax (EBT) of the Group amounted 
to €10m against €10.3m in 2023, with the corresponding Earnings after tax amounting to €7.9m, 
indicating an increase of 6.0% during the seasonally weakest quarter of the year. 
 
The Turnover from the rental activity in Greece increased in the first quarter of 2024 by 9.4% 
compared to 2023, reaching €53.6m, with the increase coming from both short-term and long-
term rentals. More specifically, the growth in short-term rentals was boosted by the increased 
demand of the local market as well as tourist arrivals in the weakest quarter of the year, but in 
an environment of lower rental prices. At the same time, in long-term rentals, there is a 
significant increase in acceptances and contracts which has already led to an increase in the fleet. 
 
The Turnover of the international renting activity reached a total of €32.7m against €30.3m in 
2023 indicating an increase of 7.9%, with balanced growth between short-term and long-term 
rentals, and with particularly dynamic growth in monthly corporate rentals. 
 
Finally, the Group companies which are active in the Import/Distribution of cars contributed a 
total of €130.9m showing a decrease of 8.1% in Turnover as, following the restoration of the 
supply chain, there is no corresponding carryover of orders from previous years into 2024 (which 
limited 2022 but benefited invoicing in 2023). It should be noted that the turnover from the 
activity of FIAT / JEEP / ALFA ROMEO is not consolidated due to joint control with Samelet, and 
amounted to €31.3m in the first quarter. 
 
The dynamics of the arrivals in the first quarter of the year seem to continue during the second 
quarter, positively affecting the demand for short-term rentals, however with more cars in the 
fleets and the market overall. At the same time, the dynamics of the company’s long-term rentals 
appear to be greater, both in conventional as well as in hybrid and electric cars. The actions that 
began with the issuance of the company's first bond loan through a public offering, as well as the 
effective effort to manage the company's borrowing structure, had and are expected to have a 
particularly significant effect on the reduction of finance costs. 
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Αποτελέσματα 3ου Τριμήνου και Εννεάμηνου 2024 
 

Κύκλος Εργασιών €749,1 εκατ. στο εννεάμηνο, με κερδοφορία €76 εκατ. μετά από φόρους 
Συνέχιση της θετικής δυναμικής στις Μισθώσεις κυρίως σε Ελλάδα αλλά και εξωτερικό  

στο 3ο τρίμηνο του έτους 
 

Ο Όμιλος Autohellas ανακοινώνει τα αποτελέσματα του τρίτου τριμήνου του 2024, με τον 
ενοποιημένο Κύκλο Εργασιών να ανέρχεται σε €275,9 εκατ. Κατά την ίδια περίοδο το ΕΒΙTDA 
ανήλθε στα €98,9 εκατ. ενώ τα ενοποιημένα Κέρδη μετά από Φόρους διαμορφώθηκαν σε 
€39 εκατ. έναντι €43,5 εκατ. την αντίστοιχη περσινή περίοδο. 

 
Σε επίπεδο εννεάμηνου, ο ενοποιημένος Κύκλος Εργασιών ανήλθε σε €749,1 εκατ. έναντι 
€762,5 εκατ. την αντίστοιχη περσινή περίοδο.  Αντίστοιχα, το ΕΒΙTDA ανήλθε στα €219,7 εκατ., 
αυξημένο κατά 2,6%, ενώ τα ενοποιημένα Κέρδη μετά από Φόρους διαμορφώθηκαν σε 
€76 εκατ., οριακά αυξημένα κατά 1,8%. Ο Κύκλος Εργασιών αλλά και η λειτουργική κερδοφορία 
στηρίχθηκαν από την για άλλη μια χρονιά ιδιαίτερα θετική διαχείριση της ζήτησης για 
βραχυχρόνιες, κυρίως τουριστικές, μισθώσεις αλλά και από τη σημαντική αύξηση του στόλου 
των μακροχρόνιων ενοικιάσεων κατά τους τελευταίους 12 μήνες. Αντίθετα η δραστηριότητα της 
εμπορίας αυτοκίνητων είχε μικρή υποχώρηση σε σχέση με το 2023 διατηρώντας όμως 
σημαντική κερδοφορία. 

 
Συνολικά η δραστηριότητα των βραχυχρόνιων και μακροχρόνιων μισθώσεων στην Ελλάδα και 
στις υπόλοιπες χώρες που δραστηριοποιείται ο Όμιλος απασχολεί στόλο που υπερβαίνει τα 
61.000 αυτοκίνητα.  
 
Η συνολική κερδοφορία του εννεάμηνου υποστηρίχθηκε με €9,0 εκατ. συνολικά από μερίσματα 
της Aegean και της Trade Estates. 

 
ΣΥΝΟΠΤΙΚΑ ΕΝΟΠΟΙΗΜΕΝΑ ΑΠΟΤΕΛΕΣΜΑΤΑ 

Ποσά σε '000€ Q3 2024 Q3 2023 % Δ 9Μ 2024 9Μ 2023 % Δ 
Κύκλος εργασιών 275.896 285.647 -3,4% 749.101 762.474 -1,8% 
EBITDA 98.934 94.532 4,7% 219.737 214.178 2,6% 
Λειτουργικό κέρδος 58.106 62.876 -7,6% 113.246 119.376 -5,1% 
Κέρδη προ φόρων (EBT) 49.491 54.890 -9,8% 91.792 95.026 -3,4% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους (EAT) 38.975 43.477 -10,4% 75.989 74.678 1,8% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους 
αποδιδόμενα στους ιδιοκτήτες της 
μητρικής 

37.784 41.065 -8,0% 72.039 68.255 5,5% 
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AUTOHELLAS CONSOLIDATED 
Amounts in '000€ Q1 2024 Q1 2023 % LY 
Total Turnover 217,127 221,596 -2.0% 
EBITDA 51,484 47,784 7.7% 
EBIT 15,327 17,559 -12.7% 
EBT 10,015 10,302 -2.8% 
EAT 7,863 7,421 6.0% 

 
 

AUTOHELLAS CONSOLIDATED 
Amounts in '000€ Q1 2024 Q1 2023 % LY 
Total Turnover 217,127 221,596 -2.0% 
Rentals Greece 53,591 48,994 9.4% 
International Segment 32,656 30,254 7.9% 
Auto Trade Greece 130,881 142,348 -8.1% 
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Αποτελέσματα 3ου Τριμήνου και Εννεάμηνου 2024 
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στο 3ο τρίμηνο του έτους 
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στηρίχθηκαν από την για άλλη μια χρονιά ιδιαίτερα θετική διαχείριση της ζήτησης για 
βραχυχρόνιες, κυρίως τουριστικές, μισθώσεις αλλά και από τη σημαντική αύξηση του στόλου 
των μακροχρόνιων ενοικιάσεων κατά τους τελευταίους 12 μήνες. Αντίθετα η δραστηριότητα της 
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Συνολικά η δραστηριότητα των βραχυχρόνιων και μακροχρόνιων μισθώσεων στην Ελλάδα και 
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Λειτουργικό κέρδος 58.106 62.876 -7,6% 113.246 119.376 -5,1% 
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Balance Sheet   
 Group 

 31.03.2024 31.12.2023 
Tangible, intangible and right-of-use assets 920,344,061 889,721,470 
Investments in associates, joint ventures and other financial assets 201,435,392 189,673,177 
Other non-current assets 43,994,373 40,378,820 
Total non-current assets 1,165,773,826 1,119,773,467    
Inventories 114,295,172 113,943,656 
Trade and other receivables 128,359,149 104,324,624 
Cash and cash equivalents 94,504,531 76,651,797 
Other current assets 65,313,175 1,541,294 
Total current assets 402,472,027 296,461,371 
Total assets 1,568,245,853 1,416,234,838    
Equity 473,365,892 455,888,226    
Borrowings, securitization and lease liabilities 632,522,854 565,488,876 
Other non-current liabilities 35,661,324 34,680,009 
Total non-current liabilities 668,184,178 600,168,885    
Borrowings, securitization and lease liabilities 153,629,940 105,431,039 
Trade and other payables 273,065,843 254,746,688 
Total current liabilities 426,695,783 360,177,727 
Total liabilities 1,094,879,961 960,346,612 
Total equity and liabilities 1,568,245,853 1,416,234,838 

 

Income Statement   
 Group 

 
1.1.2024 - 
31.3.2024 

1.1.2023 - 
31.3.2023 

Revenue 217,127,068 221,596,016 
Cost of sales (184,891,628) (186,446,054) 
Gross profit 32,235,440 35,149,962 
Operating profit 14,790,310 17,559,232 
Profit before tax 10,015,043 10,302,353 
Profit for the period 7,862,800 7,421,474    
Profit for the period attributable to:   
Owners of the parent 6,667,783 5,862,624 
Non-controlling interests 1,195,017 1,558,850 

 7,862,800 7,421,474 
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Ποσά σε '000€ Q3 2024 Q3 2023 % Δ 9Μ 2024 9Μ 2023 % Δ 
Κύκλος εργασιών 275.896 285.647 -3,4% 749.101 762.474 -1,8% 
EBITDA 98.934 94.532 4,7% 219.737 214.178 2,6% 
Λειτουργικό κέρδος 58.106 62.876 -7,6% 113.246 119.376 -5,1% 
Κέρδη προ φόρων (EBT) 49.491 54.890 -9,8% 91.792 95.026 -3,4% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους (EAT) 38.975 43.477 -10,4% 75.989 74.678 1,8% 
Κέρδη μετά από φόρους 
αποδιδόμενα στους ιδιοκτήτες της 
μητρικής 

37.784 41.065 -8,0% 72.039 68.255 5,5% 
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INFORMATION BASED ON ARTICLE 10 OF L.3401/2005 PUBLISHED BY THE COMPANY DURING FISCAL YEAR 2024 
 
AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND TRADING SOCIETE ANONYME had disclosed the following information over the period 
01/01/2024 – 31/12/2024, which are posted on the Company’s website www.autohellas.gr as well as the website of the 
Athens Exchange www.athexgroup.gr. 
 
 

Date Subject Website 

13.11.2024 Press Release Financial Figures 3rd Quarter and Nine 
months 2024 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

21.10.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

17.10.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

16.10.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

15.10.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

11.10.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

23.09.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

19.09.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

10.09.2024 Press Release – 2nd Quarter and Half one results 2024 www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

30.08.2024 Announcement of regulated information according to 
Law 3556/2007 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

09.08.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

07.08.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

06.08.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

15.07.2024 1st Interest Payment Period of the Common Bond Loan www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

17.06.2024 

Trade Acknowledgements in compliance with Law 
3340/2007, the provisions of the Regulation (EU) No 
596/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council 
and the decision of the Board of Directors of the Capital 
Market Commission 3/347/12.7.2005 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

17.06.2024 Free distribution of Company’s shares to executives www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

11.06.2024 XPENG MOTORS and Autohellas www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

10.06.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

06.06.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

05.06.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

G.
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Date Subject Website 

05.06.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

03.06.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.05.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

27.05.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

24.05.2024 Announcement for the purchase of own shares www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

24.05.2024 Treasury Shares Purchase Program Initiation www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

22.05.2024 Press Release – 1st Quarter 2024 www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

18.04.2024 Dividend Payment for 2023 www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

18.04.2024 Decisions of the Annual General Meeting www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α1 – Invitation to General Meeting www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α2 – Draft Decisions www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α3 – Yearly Economic Report 2023 www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α4 – Remuneration Report www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α5 – Audit Committee Report to GM www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α6 – Independent Non-Executive Directors’ Report www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α7 – Draft of the amended remuneration policy for the 
members of the Company’s BoD 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α8 – Mail voting form www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α9 – Representative / delegate form for participation 
with mail vote 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α10 – Representative / delegate form for participation 
via teleconference 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α11 – Announcement on shares and voting rights www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α12 – Exercising minority shareholders’ rights www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α13 -Terms and conditions for participation from 
distance 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 Α14 – Information on personal data protection www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

28.03.2024 List of documents for Ordinary General Meeting www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

19.03.2024 
Revised date for the Conference Call Invitation to 
present and discuss The “Full Year 2023 Financial 
Results” 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 
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Date Subject Website 

19.03.2024 Revised Financial Calendar 2024 www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

15.03.2024 Conference Call Invitation to present and discuss The 
“Full Year 2023 Financial Results” 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

07.03.2024 Press Release Year 2023 Financial Results www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

20.02.2024 Financial Calendar 2024 www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

25.01.2024 Announcement of regulated information according to 
Law 3556/2007 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

23.01.2024 Announcement for the Commencement of Trading and 
the Use of Proceeds 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

23.01.2024 Announcement for the Results of the Public Offering www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

19.01.2024 Final Yield Announcement www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

16.01.2024 Announcement – Invitation to Investors (with Range) www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

11.01.2024 Press Release – Issuance of Common Bond Loan www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

11.01.2024 Announcement-Invitation to investors without range www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

11.01.2024 Announcement Availability of Prospectus www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

11.01.2024 Target Market Announcement www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

08.01.2024 

Announcement of the resolution of the Board of 
Directors of “AUTOHELLAS TOURIST AND 
TRADING SOCIÉTÉ ANONYME” regarding the 
issuance of a Common Bond Loan 

www.athexgroup.gr (Daily official list announcements) 
www.autohellas.gr 

 
SITE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
 
The annual Financial Statements and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the period 01.01.2024 – 31.12.2024 have been 
published on the Company’s official website: www.autohellas.gr.  The financial statements of the subsidiaries will be 
published on the Company's website when they become ready for publication. 
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INTERNATIONAL RESERVATIONS CENTER........................................................................ TEL:(210) 6264.444 
................................................................................................................................................................. 801 11 100 100

AKTIO AIRPORT (Preveza).....................................................................................................+30 26824 40056
Punta Aktiou – Vonitsas, Preveza .............................................................................................+30 6977592621

ALEXANDROUPOLIS............................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 25510 45408
155, Dimokratias Avenue............................................................................................................ +30 25510 82014 

ATHENS................................................................................................................................................................
Αthens International Airport “El. Venizelos”......................................................................... +30 210 3534900 
25, Syngrou Avenue .................................................................................................................... +30 211 1084400
570, Vouliagmenis & Karaiskaki (Argyroupolis).................................................................. +30 210 9982941
Kifissia (Kato Kifissia-Head office).................................................................................................
33, Viltanioti str.,............................................................................................................................. +30 210 8003900
Kifissia, 286,Kifissias Ave............................................................................................................. +30 210 8010416
Agia Paraskevi-Athens...................................................................................................................
414, Mesogion Ave.,...................................................................................................................... +30 210 6512423
Peania.............................................................................................................................................
2nd km Peanias-Markopoulou................................................................................................. +30 210 6646021 
Piraeus............................................................................................................................................
67,Akti Miaouli & Ag.Nikolaou str.,.......................................................................................... +30 210 4526600

CHIOS 	.................................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 22710 26115
Chios Town, 25, Neorion............................................................................................................. +30 22710 26115 

CORFU	.................................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 26614 40112
Main Office, Ethniki Lefkimis .................................................................................................... +30 26610 38388
Acharavi............................................................................................................................................ +30 26630 63864

CRETE	 .................................................................................................................................................................
Heraklion........................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 2810 330452
Industrial Area (Head Office)..................................................................................................... +30 2810 382230
34, 25 Augoustou.......................................................................................................................... +30 2810 300744 
Chania.............................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 28210 63385
1st klm Airport Chania – Soudas.............................................................................................. +30 28211 23000 
Rethymnon.....................................................................................................................................
16, Sofokli Venizelou (Down Town)......................................................................................... +30 28310 26286 
Agios Nikolaos................................................................................................................................
15, Akti I. Koundourou Str., (Down Town)............................................................................. +30 28410 28311
Chersonissos...................................................................................................................................
25,Dimokratias (Down Town).................................................................................................... +30 28970 22009 
Sitia.................................................................................................................................................
Sitia Airport ..................................................................................................................................... +30 28430 29305 

IOANNINA............................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 26510 27400
66, Gramou Avenue ..................................................................................................................... +30 26510 65002
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PELOPONNESE ....................................................................................................................................................
KALAMATA......................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 27210 69547
13, Likourgou  & Idras str.,(Down Town)................................................................................ +30 27210 69498 
MESSINIA........................................................................................................................................
Costa Navarino Hotel – Resort.................................................................................................. +30 27230 91150
KARPATHOS....................................................................................................................................
Karpathos Airport.......................................................................................................................... +30 22450 91105 

KAVALA................................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 25910 53320 
Epivatikos Stathmos Kentrikou Limena (Down Town)..................................................... +30 2510 838310

KYLLINI ................................................................................................................................................................
Grecotel Olympia Oasis Hotel, Loutra Kyllinis..................................................................... +30 26230 96222

KEFALONIA..........................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 26714 40040
Airport Area, (100m. from the airport entrance)................................................................ +30 26710 42058 

KOS.......................................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 22420 51400
Ethelonton Palaion Polemiston, Lampi,(Down Town)...................................................... +30 22420 28002 
Antimachia (200m. from Airport)............................................................................................ +30 22420 51625

LARISSA...............................................................................................................................................................
53, Iroon Politechniou................................................................................................................. +30 2410 670200 

LESVOS (Town)....................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 22514 40068
3, Argiri Eftalioti str., (Down Town).......................................................................................... +30 22510 37355
Petra Area ........................................................................................................................................ +30 22530 42675
 

MYCONOS............................................................................................................................................................  
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 22890 27511
Omvrodektis (Head office)......................................................................................................... +30 22890 27346 

NAXOS	.................................................................................................................................................................
Chora Naxou (Main Port)............................................................................................................ +30 22850 26600
Naxos Airport.................................................................................................................................. +30 22850 26600

PAROS
Parikia 100m.left from port (next to Health Center)......................................................... +30 22840 28113
Paros Airport................................................................................................................................... +30 22840 91755
Kampos - Paros............................................................................................................................... +30 22840 90751

PATRAS.................................................................................................................................................................
40, Akti Dimaion str.,(Down Town).......................................................................................... +30 2610 220990
Araxos A/P........................................................................................................................................ +30 26930 52002

RHODES................................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 22410 82902 
12th klm, Rhodes-Kameirou Ave., (Head Office)................................................................ +30 22410 98200
Lotharikia, Lardou......................................................................................................................... +30 22440 48430
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SAMOS .................................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 22734 40056
Lykourgou Logotheti, Pythagoreio, ....................................................................................... +30 22730 62406 
Vathi, 17 Sofouli Str.,(Main Port)............................................................................................... +30 22730 24771

SANTORINI...........................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 22860 33670
Monolithos, A/P area ................................................................................................................... +30 22860 25220
Mesaria, A/P area .......................................................................................................................... +30 22861 10930

SKIATHOS (Town)................................................................................................................................................
Skiathos A/P ................................................................................................................................... +30 24270 22230

THESSALONIKI.....................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 2310 743952 
130 Georgikis Scholis (Main Office)........................................................................................ +30 2310 476270 
4, Salaminos str. Opposite Mediterranean Palace Hotel.................................................. +30 2310 528525

HALKIDIKI............................................................................................................................................................
Sani Beach Hotel............................................................................................................................ +30 23740 31313
Nikiti, Agios Nikolaos Poligiros................................................................................................. +30 23750 22777

VOLOS (Town)......................................................................................................................................................
Port of Volos (passenger terminal)
Entrance Limenas-Pyrassou....................................................................................................... +30 24210 22544
Agora Limenos Volou ¨Building K27¨ 
Anchialos A/P (Volos)................................................................................................................... +30 24280 79949

ZAKYNTHOS........................................................................................................................................................
Airport............................................................................................................................................... +30 26954 40056
Ampelokipoi (Airport road)....................................................................................................... +30 26950 45706
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Autohellas S.A. Hertz Licensee

VASSILAKIS GROUP OF COMPANIES
31 Viltanioti str.,  – 145 64 Kifisia

Athens-Greece-Tel.:210/6264.000 





Tourist and Trading Société Anonyme
31 Viltanioti Str., Kifissia, Attica


